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The cover of this year's annual report features “Brilliant Autumn” by Nancy Chu Woo, a modern artist
renowned for expressing Nature and humanity with luminous colours in her paintings. The vibrant and
eye-catching hues in “Brilliant Autumn” resemble beams of sunlight radiating across a landscape on an
Autumn day, symbolizing a hidden vitality amidst a state of confusion and obscurity.

Similarly, during the uncertain economic recovery following the global financial tsunami, the Group has
used the solid foundation of its core businesses, strong brands and value adding innovation to increase
its competitiveness, thus ensuring bright prospects for the Group's businesses.
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GROUP PROFILE
SEZN

Gold Peak Group is an Asian multinational group which owns high-quality industrial investments via
GP Industries Limited, its major industrial investment vehicle. The Group has built renowned brand names
for its major product categories, such as GP batteries, KEF and CELESTION loudspeakers.

The parent company, Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, was established in 1964 and has been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 1984. Currently, Gold Peak holds an approximately 81.1%*
interest in GP Industries while GP Industries holds an approximately 49.7%* interest in GP Batteries
International Limited. GP Industries and GP Batteries are publicly listed in Singapore.

Including all divisions, the Group's turnover for financial year 2010-2011 amounted to HK$6.8 billion and
its total assets exceeded HK$7.1 billion. Including the major operations of its various divisions, the Group
currently employs 13,300 people worldwide.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
KERE

81.1%"

= 1
H B B

GP Batteries International Electronics & Automotive Other
Limited Acoustics Wire Harness Investments
SILEHEBEARAE EfEMR FEEAR HipiR&E
Singapore-listed ¥N3% £ BsEs
M Primary specialty

—RMEREEY
M Primary cylindrical

) | 28 3y

RIEERBH * Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding

M Rechargeable & others held by Gold Peak or GP Industries as at 28 June 2011

FEMREM BRRASILTERCPTE1201146 A28 B fris 2 g

The Group’s Global Manufacturing
and Distribution Network

EEZEZREERTHAS

~ GPBatteries @ =

SWI%(RE)ARAT —F-FE-T——4F% 5



|
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRGETRE

2011 2010
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT e WEER
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) BE3IANBLEFE (BESBT)
Turnover X
— Consolidated turnover — AR ER 1,957.5 1,457.5
— All divisions* — BIEATA E I 6,806.2 5,994.7
Total profit for the year BEBG R 85.1 128.2
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) BAREF (5il) 10.84 20.55
Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents) BRI E (8il) 5.5 6.5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  43& BA#&#h R 3%
At 31 March (HK$ million) R3A31H (BEET)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARIHEE AEGHER 1,571.0 1,474.0
Total assets BEE 3,730.2 3,751.6
Capital expenditure BARMST H 29.9 23.8
RATIOS b=
At 31 March M3A31H
Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio) MEEE . REAE (b 1.1 0.9
Inventory turnover period (months) FER@E (B) 2.7 3.3
Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio) IRITEEFE  LBE (b
— The Group — £ 0.39 0.49
— The Company — R~ A] 0.40 0.40
OTHER INFORMATION H {th &
At 31 March MH3A318
The Company & its subsidiaries : RARIEMBAR :
Number of employees EEAS
— China (including Hong Kong) — B (BIEED) 2,600 2,700
— Other countries — HMBR 160 150
2,760 2,850
Total area (sq m) #RmERE (FAK)
— China (including Hong Kong) — FE (BEEH) 88,000 90,000
— Other countries — HMBExR 13,000 13,000
101,000 103,000

* Including the Group’s major associates: ~ * EIEEEM 2 F BHL QT :
- GP Batteries - 2ILEM
- Lighthouse (up to 30 June 2009) - ARk (200946 A30A Lk)

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED -~ ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011



TURNOVER BY BUSINESS* FTEEK CEERE
Year ended 31 March 2011 BZE2011E3A31HILEE

I Batteries Eth
I Electronics &F

TURNOVER BY LOCATION* BHWEZEETE DM e
Year ended 31 March 2011 HE2011F3AMHIEFE e

B Asia 253
I Europe B
[ Americas =M
B Others E

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FEEH 2 BRBATSAH 3.2%
BY BUSINESS ATTRIBUTABLE  &Z20114E3 831 L E[E
TO GOLD PEAK#

Year ended 31 March 2011

I Electronics B+
I Batteries &3,
[ Other Investments E A&

TOTAL ASSETS BY LOCATION* & #h[&E > @& E 5 #*
As at 31 March 2011 R20114€3A318 3.5%

4.2%

6.7%
Bl Hong Kong & China &8 &+ B

I Rest of Asia H b TS MBI

I Europe B 15.0%
[0 Australia 2

[ Americas =M

* |ncluding the Group’s major associate, GP Batteries 3% M ~ = BH A A T & L EH
# Excluding impairment loss on available-for-sale investments Rt H & 4238 > i ES1R
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

BBEERBTHE W

TURNOVER*
?(ear ended 31 March (HK$ million) 7000
—ES 0l
S 6000
5000
4000
@—a Consolidated Turnover
FREER

3000

* Including the Group’s major associates:
- GP Batteries 2000

- Lighthouse (up to 30 June 2009)

* DIEEE 7 TEHENE
- 2B 1000
- JKABHE (Z20094F6 A30H 1t)

7,109

0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
TOTAL ASSETS*
At 31 March (HK$ million) 10000 9,347 9224
nEE" 9000
M3A31H (BEHT)
------------------------------------------------------ 8000
7000
6000
@®—=o Consolidated assets 5000
IREBEE
4000
* Including the Group’s major associates:
- GP Batteries 3000
- Lighthouse (up to 31 March 2009)
- TR 2000
* AEREZ FBMERA]
-l 1000
- JBARHE (E200943A31H L)
0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
PROFITS BY BUSINESS#
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)
@I R 400
HEIAMAILLEE (BE&ET)
300
I cElectronics [ Batteries
[0 Other Ir}vestments 200
Hnig &
—
# Total net profits by respective business (on a 100% basis) - -
AR 2 %5 FIAREE (R100%RE%E) - ]
* Excluding impairment loss on available-for-sale 0 TT1 111
investments
RETAI 1R E 2R ERE
2007 2008 2009* 2010* 2011*
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MARKET CAPITALIZATION
At 31 March (HK$ million)

miE

M3A3MAB (BEET) 1600
[ Goldpeak M GP Industries 1200
ST GPIT %
I GP Batteries
Al
800
400
0
2011
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 125
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)
FATRENERDER () 100 )
HEIANALEE (BEHT) :
...................................................... 75
50
25
0
2011
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE AND
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
Year ended 31 March (Hong Kong cents) 20
BRER (&1) RRE
HBEIANBIEFE (BIL) 15
...................................................... )
) 10
I Earnings (Loss) per share
BIREF (B518) 1 5.5
[ Dividends per share > l 2i5
e 10.64
: oo

SIWTX (RE) BRAF

2011
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2011 2010
HEBT BEET
HK$ million HK$ million
FelEz CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BZ3A3MALEE Year ended 31 March
L0 Turnover 1,957.5 1,475.5
B EF(EE) Operating profit (loss) (26.5) 5.9
b E A RIEE Share of results of associates 164.8 184.5
Frib HEEHI A B EE Share of results of a jointly controlled entity = =
BB AR M EISER (518) Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation 138.3 190.4
g Taxation (24.8) (8.9)
2ER7(E18) Profit (Loss) for the year 113.5 181.5
BR: Attributable to:
RATEEA Owners of the Company 85.1 128.2
FERER Non-controlling interests 28.4 53.3
113.5 181.5
fRE B IR R CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
H3A31A8 At 31 March
REWE Investment properties 75.4 0.2
¥ - MERRE Property, plant and equipment 249.2 262.4
BNHEENE Prepaid lease payments - -
FribEgE A E) R Interests in associates 1,804.2 1,747 1
FriG HRES D AR Interests in a jointly controlled entity o= =
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 125.5 187.9
g Trademarks 27.2 31.4
BHERE Investments in securities - -
HKEBIBHEZER Advances to trade associates - -
REEWERIE Long-term receivables 130.7 62.1
HERR Technical know-how 0.6 0.7
BE Goodwill 63.6 61.0
EERBEE Deferred taxation assets 1.2 =
REBEE Current assets 1,252.6 1,398.8
BEE Total assets 3,730.2 3,751.6
EE Borrowings 525.7 222.9
EREE Convertible note - -
EERHIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 23.2 15.8
MEHESE Obligation under finance leases 1.2 1.1
RBEE Current liabilities 1,171.1 1,573.3
s Total liabilities 1,721.2 1,813.1
2,009.0 1,938.5
RN BHEE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,571.0 1,474.0
FERER Non-controlling interests 438.0 464.5
2,009.0 1,938.5

Note: The financial infomation for 2005 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2006 resulting from the adoption of the new
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards effective that year. The financial information for years 2002 to 2004 was not restated for practical reasons.
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

HEET HEET HEET HEET HEET HEET HEBAET HEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
o]
1,313.6 1,477.5 1,902.6 2,002.3 2,179.2 1,684.5 1,809.1 1,601.6
(120.8) 28.9 (99.0) 14.2 73.9 (155.3) (52.5) (57.2)
56.5 104.1 324.7 110.0 86.9 460.3 203.3 147.6
= -- -- (26.2) (56.6) = = ==
(64.3) 133.0 225.7 98.0 104.2 305.0 150.8 90.4
(11.8) (30.8) (24.3) (25.4) (15.6) (80.1) (52.7) (35.1)
(76.1) 102.2 201.4 72.6 88.6 224.9 98.1 55.3
(65.3) 70.4 115.1 61.7 65.9 173.8 68.8 37.3
(10.8) 31.8 86.3 10.9 22.7 51.1 29.3 18.0
(76.1) 102.2 201.4 72.6 88.6 224.9 98.1 55.3
103.2 117.2 132.0 105.7 104.1 139.0 112.3 89.7
236.5 270.2 272.8 305.6 381.3 318.4 259.9 300.7
24.6 36.1 37.1 37.8 36.4 = = =
1,814.9 1,882.2 1,726.4 1,408.1 1,218.4 2,194.2 1,729.4 1,557.9
= = = = 322.5 = = =
281.1 416.2 598.0 564.9 275.3 == == ==
35.6 39.7 43.9 48.1 52.3 56.5 60.6 64.8
= - == = 149.5 143.8 177.4 191.8
= - = = 114.0 97.0 109.0 117.0
46.8 371.7 330.2 614.7 647.9 = == ==
3.5 7.7 35.0 38.8 30.9 = = 24.5
59.1 58.2 53.7 35.1 77.0 7.4 9.1 10.1
= = 12.4 15.2 15.9 == == ==
1,428.7 1,895.6 2,082.8 2,072.1 2,096.4 1,276.0 1,180.2 1,501.0
4,034.0 5,094.8 5,324.3 5,246.1 5,521.9 4,232.3 3,637.9 3,857.5
836.6 1,218.0 1,173.3 1,577.4 1,209.6 1,147.2 1,008.7 1,618.9
= = = = = 88.5 85.9 83.4
17.3 16.8 16.2 11.0 16.9 9.4 7.2 9.3
2.2 == == = = = = =
1,369.0 1,742.2 1,922.2 1,698.8 2,181.0 1,436.0 1,314.1 979.2
2,225.1 2,977.0 3,111.7 3,287.2 3,407.5 2,681.1 2,415.9 2,690.8
1,808.9 2,117.8 2,212.6 1,958.9 2,114.4 1,551.2 1,222.0 1,166.7
1,165.7 1,383.2 1,426.8 1,180.4 1,265.8 1,278.4 998.9 941.5
643.2 734.6 785.8 778.5 848.6 272.8 223.1 225.2
1,808.9 2,117.8 2,212.6 1,958.9 2,114.4 1,551.2 1,222.0 1,166.7

KiEE : 2006F MBS ERBREFRT - ARBERBR2006F LM I BBHHMELREEZ BFTBRED) - REBERBERE - 20026 22004 F P B AR UL MEHH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHRESF

Andrew Ng R £ &
Vice Chairman

BlERE

Victor Lo % i &&

Chairman & Chief Executive

FEREREH

The Group had a steady year as the global economy stabilised,
although towards the end of 2010 the business environment
became more challenging again. Demand in the developed
economies began to weaken while costs continued to rise, as wages
increased sharply in China and the Renminbi kept appreciating. The
prices of raw materials have also been volatile, especially in the case

of some of the industrial metals which we used in our production.

The Group has nonetheless delivered higher revenues, following
higher sales and increases in market share at our core businesses.
Excluding impairment losses on investments, profit from operations
increased, pointing to the effectiveness of our strategies to
control costs and raise productivity by investing in automation and
efficiency. We have also continued to strengthen our balance sheet
and cash flow by cautiously managing capital expenditure and

divesting non-core assets.

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED -~ ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Consolidated turnover for the financial year 2010-2011 increased
by 34% over the previous year to HK$1,958 million. The
consolidated net profit attributable to owners of the Company has
however come down to HK$85.1 million, a decrease of 33.7% over
the previous year. For the year under review, the Group recorded
impairment losses of HK$82.3 million. The basic earnings per share
for the year amounted to 10.84 Hong Kong cents, as compared

with 20.55 Hong Kong cents the previous year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 3.0 Hong Kong
cents per share, against 3.5 Hong Kong cents per share the previous
year, making a total dividend of 5.5 Hong Kong cents per share
for the year, against 6.5 Hong Kong cents for the financial year
2009-2010.

During the year, the Group’s balance sheet was strengthened
further. Net bank borrowings decreased by HK$165 million to
HK$787 million. As at 31 March 2011, the aggregate of the Group’s
shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests was HK$2,009
million and the Group’s gearing ratio was 0.39 times, against 0.49
times at 31 March 2010.

OPERATIONS

GP Industries’ revenue increased and profit from operations
rose significantly, on the back of strong performance from the
electronics business and a full year contribution from Shanghai
Jinting Automobile Harness Limited (“Jinting”). However, a net
exceptional loss relating to impairment losses on investments
resulted in a decrease in profit attributable to equity holders of GP

Industries.

Sales from the electronics business increased strongly, mainly due
to higher sales of professional audio products as we introduced
new products that were well received. The increase of sales from
the acoustics business was led by sales to China and Americas.
Sales were lower in Europe partly due to currency movements.
Jinting benefited from the strong automotive market in
China, contributing a higher profit to the Group based on the
proportionate consolidation of its profit for the full financial year.
Associated companies of the components business contributed a

slightly higher profit.

GP Batteries’ turnover increased, but the gross profit margin

decreased primarily owing to higher labour costs in China, the

EERRE

A EETEIEMNI4%E19.58EBIT - AR
BB ABEEEFEFR8,5108ET - &
EFETK33 7% - NEEEEHBREEE
8,2308% T - BREARFA10.84Fl -
EF 5E20.55731L °

EEREFRRBERPRESMI.08M - 8L
EFEMI.58 - 2FERSEFKE.581
EFERAER6.58 -

EEE—SPREEEARBRK  RITERFHE
WA 1.65FBBLET.GTEST - K201143
A1 EEZRFESRIFEREREH
20.09188 T  KEBELXR/0.39 £F2
LR EF 20.49 ©

EBRE

GPITRZERFEIERN  KEBMAB LA - =
EHNETEMEBRARY  MEFATE
BEFRREBAREFZES - AW - AR
BEREBREMESFHIRER  GPTERR
JEAG 48 M A L N EBK ©
ETEMmFEBNERERYER  T2AR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

FEBREE®

appreciation of the Renminbi and volatile raw material prices. Profit

after tax attributable to equity holders of GP Batteries decreased.

Cable associate Linkz Industries Limited contributed a lower
profit mainly because of higher raw material prices. The 20%-
owned Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. returned to profit. Interest and
dividend income from this business segment were lower than the
previous year. This segment also reported a net exceptional loss,

comprising mainly impairment losses on investments.

OUTLOOK

The coming year is likely to be challenging. Our export markets in
the US, Europe and Japan have softened and there are signs that
growth in the emerging markets may slow, as governments tighten
monetary conditions to combat inflation. Labour costs in China are
forecast to continue to rise and the Renminbi to appreciate further.
Volatility in raw material prices is likely to remain a feature of the

operating environment.

To remain competitive in such an environment, the Group must
further improve its ability to add value. We compete in mid to
high range product categories and, rather than competing on
price, provide added value through technology-based product
development that enhances product innovation, and provide
exceptional service. We will continue to invest in R&D and to

enhance our service levels.

Having strong brands is another important competitive advantage,
especially when economic conditions are soft. Unlike many
manufacturers, we have established our own brands and global
distribution networks, which give us better control over costs and

pricing strategies.

With customers avoiding high levels of inventory, our ability to
bring new products to market quickly is also important and we

have a good track record in this regard.

Like other manufacturers, we have been addressing cost issues
through automation and updating our management information
systems, and we will continue to upgrade our production facilities

to improve efficiency and reduce labour content.

We expect profit margins in 2011-2012 to be volatile. We will
continue to strengthen our balance sheet by streamlining our
operations. Our close relationships with customers, product

innovation and high level of customer service will enable us to

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED -~ ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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maintain or gain market share under highly competitive market

situations.

VOTE OF THANKS

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the directors and
management for their insight and hard work during the year and
to commend our employees for their contribution to our results.
| also value the support of our shareholders, business partners,
bankers and customers. Special thanks go to Mr Paul Lo, a co-
founder of the Group in 1960s, who resigned as executive director
in April 2011.

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive

28 June 2011
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CUSTOMER INTIMACY E% % P Bl %

k€ What differentiates us from the many thousands of manufacturers
in Asia is that we offer added values and excellent services. We
cater to a group of long-term customers who we understand
deeply. Rather than just responding passively to their requests, we
work closely with them on product development that will help

them outperform in their markets. 99
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OVERVIEW

The Group had a stable year in the financial year 2010-2011
following the challenges of the global financial crisis. It continued
to capitalize on its core competence as well as effective strategies
of controlling cost and raising productivity. As a result, higher
revenues and increased market shares for its core businesses were
recorded with stronger growth achieved in emerging markets

including China.

GP INDUSTRIES

Revenue increased by 25% and profit from operations soared by
62% in Singapore dollar terms. The increases were attributable to
the strong performance of the electronics and acoustics business,
and a higher contribution from the automotive wire harness

business.

Gross profit margin decreased from 28.1% to 26.8% as the margin
of the automotive wire harness business, which contributed a
higher percentage of GP Industries’ revenue, was lower than that
of electronics and acoustics business. The share of profit from
associates decreased due mainly to a lower profit contribution
from GP Batteries International Limited (“GP Batteries”) and Linkz
Industries Limited (“Linkz"). Profit attributable to equity holders

of GP Industries decreased by 30%.

ELECTRONICS AND ACOUSTICS

Electronics and acoustics business continued to perform well with
an 11% increase in revenue. Despite rising labour costs in China
and higher material prices, the electronics and acoustic business
was able to maintain its gross profit margin through enhanced

operational efficiency and the introduction of new products.

Sales from the electronics business increased by 22%, mainly driven
by the sales growth of professional audio products. New products

launched during the year were well received in the market.
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ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY 3 £ fiy

You cannot really add value in our business without being able
to bring technology to bear on problems. Yet we are one of the
few companies of our kind that invests in basic research as well
as engineering know-how. This approach lies at the heart of the
ground breaking products that make our brands stand out. b}
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The acoustics business remained steady during the year. Sales from
the Americas grew by 24%. Sales to China continued to grow
with an increase of 31%, but sales to Hong Kong declined. The
Asian markets registered a small overall growth. Sales to Europe
decreased by 10% as a result of a soft market and the weaker

Sterling and Euro.

Contribution from associated companies of the components
manufacturing business increased slightly. During the year, GP
Industries disposed of its entire 46.41% equity interest in SPG
Industry (H.K.) Limited.

Excluding exceptional items, total profit contribution from the
electronics and acoustics business increased by 46% over the

previous year.

AUTOMOTIVE WIRE HARNESS

Shanghai Jinting Automobile Harness Limited continued to benefit
from the strong automotive market in China. It contributed a
higher revenue and profit to GP Industries upon proportionate
consolidation of its full year results, against a period of five
months for the previous year. Overall, profit contribution from the

automotive wire harness business increased by 72%.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

The 37.7%-owned cable associate Linkz contributed less profit
mainly due to higher raw material prices. The 20%-owned Meiloon
Industrial Co., Ltd, which made a loss before taxation the previous

year, returned to profit.

Interest and dividend income from this business segment were
lower. During the year, this business segment reported a net
exceptional loss of approximately HK$79.3 million relating to
impairment loss on investments in Gerard Corporation Pty Ltd and
GSM Holdings Limited.
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE xik 4 %

How to remain cost effective while building brand value is one of
the key challenges in business today. As part of the Group’s drive to
increase productivity, we invest in automation and manufacturing
facilities, as well as information technology management which will
enable us to respond to the market more quickly and effectively
and strive for better operational performance. )b
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GP BATTERIES (currently 49.7% owned by GP Industries)

Revenue at GP Batteries registered a slight increase of 4%
comprising growth in both the consumer and industrial segments.
The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 23.6%
to 21.2%, mainly due to rising wages in China, appreciation of
the Renminbi and escalating raw material costs. Profit after tax
attributable to equity holders of GP Batteries decreased by 48%.

To reduce the impact of rising costs, GP Batteries has begun a new
pricing policy for its major customers to reflect the changing prices
of its major raw materials. In addition, GP Batteries continued to
invest in automation and information technology management,

which should lower the operating costs in the long run.

GP Batteries continued to win market shares for its core products
and registered growth for both its primary batteries and
rechargeable batteries. Sales in the consumer market continued
to be strong as a result of continuous branding efforts and its
established distribution network. In Hong Kong, according to the
Nielsen’s market reports, GP ranked as the number one brand in
the alkaline battery segment as well as in the rechargeable battery

and charger market over a seven-year period.

While GP Batteries continued its efforts in key emerging markets,
it also started venturing into new markets such as Vietnam, India
and the Middle East. During the year, GP Batteries acquired a 30%
equity interest in Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Co (“Habaco”), a major
battery manufacturer in Vietnam. This investment enabled GP
Batteries to tap into the marketing channels of Habaco in Vietham

and to increase its presence in the surrounding countries.

Sales to the industrial market increased as GP Batteries remained a
major manufacturer of rechargeable batteries for applications such
as electric bicycles and cordless phones. The rechargeable lithium
business improved against the previous year. The development of
lithium battery for tablet PC and e-book will become the priority

of new products.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
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GP Batteries continued to invest in electric vehicle batteries and
increased production of lithium rechargeable batteries for its
newly acquired Vectrix Corporation, which manufactures electric
scooters. Vectrix at present focuses on fleet sales, such as law
enforcement agencies around the world. Its flagship products,
VX-1 and VX-2, were named "“European e-Scooter of the Year” in

the above 45km/h and below 25km/h categories respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group’s net bank borrowings decreased
by HK$165 million to HK$787 million. As at 31 March 2011, the
aggregate of the Group's shareholders’ funds and non-controlling
interests was HK$2,009 million and the Group’s gearing ratio (the
ratio of consolidated net bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds
and non-controlling interests) was 0.39 (31 March 2010: 0.49). The
gearing ratios of the Company, GP Industries and GP Batteries
were 0.40 (31 March 2010: 0.40), 0.16 (31 March 2010: 0.24) and 0.39
(31 March 2010: 0.35) respectively.

At 31 March 2011, 58% (31 March 2010: 83%) of the Group’s bank
borrowings was revolving or repayable within one year whereas
42% (31 March 2010: 17%) was repayable between one to five
years. Most of these bank borrowings are in US dollars, Singapore

dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises mainly from
the net cash flow and the translation of net monetary assets or
liabilities of its overseas subsidiaries. The Group and its major
associates continued to manage foreign exchange risks prudently.
Forward contracts, borrowings in local currencies and local
sourcing have been arranged to minimize the impact of currency

fluctuation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group and its major business divisions continued to be
supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 13,300
people worldwide. The Group offered fair compensation
packages and retirement schemes to its employees.
Discretionary incentives were granted to eligible employees
based on the performance of the Group and contribution of the

staff members.

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED -~ ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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During the year, the Group continued to invest in its people
through development programmes designed to enhance their
skills and operational excellence. Various workshops and training
sessions on management development, professional competence,

operational efficiency and product knowledge were provided.

As a responsible employer, the Group continued its efforts on
environment, health and safety (“EHS”) to ensure a safe and
conducive work environment for its employees. Seminars and
workshops on EHS management were held for employees
to strengthen their awareness of occupational well-being,

environmental protection and personal healthiness.

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY

In response to the increasing awareness of sustainable
development, the Group has devoted efforts to promote waste
reduction and green practices in its manufacturing facilities.
During the year, a number of the Group’s battery factories in
China received environmental awards from local authorities
in recognition of their unfailing commitment to this aspect of

corporate social responsibility.

The Group’s determination in advocating a greener lifestyle is
reflected in its product development. The GP PowerBank Eco-
friendly charger, which was launched during the year and is
Energy Star-certified, reduces carbon emissions by 60%, helping
to save energy by maximizing the utility of every charge. GP
Batteries also started to supply mercury-free silver-zinc and

manganese-zinc button cells.

Building on its contribution to the community in previous years,
the Group continued to support various industry and charity
programs. It also encouraged its employees to participate in
community projects such as tree planting, blood donation and
visits to nursing homes. In the aftermath of the tragic disasters
in Japan, the Group and its employees supported relief work by
donating 250,000 items of batteries and 33,000 flashlights to
Japan.

The Company was rewarded the “Caring Company” logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the ninth consecutive

year.
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CORPORATE CALENDAR OF EVENTS
£E B

2010

April

Linkz Industries Limited issued new Linkz shares as consideration for
its acquisition of Lighthouse Technologies Limited. As a result, GP
Industries Limited’s equity interest in Linkz decreased from 47.23%
t0 37.72%.

May

mA
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GP Industries Limited disposed of its entire 20% interest in Dai-ichi
Electronics (Shanghai) Co Ltd, China

June
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GP Batteries International Limited increased its interest in GP Battery
Marketing (Korea) Limited to 90%.

October

&1L EME R AR A AEE RGP Battery
Marketing (Korea) Limited 2 % #Z%90% °

+A

GP Industries Limited disposed of its entire 46.41% equity interest in
SPG Industry (HK) Limited.

November
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GP Batteries International Limited acquired a 30% equity interest in
Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company, Vietnam.

GP Electronics (Huizhou) Co Ltd and GP Batteries (China) Limited
were named an “Enterprise with State-level Quality and Credibility”
by the China Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association.

GP Batteries International Limited received “Outstanding Knowledge
Management Project Award 2010” from the Knowledge Management
Research Centre of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

2011

2 ILEMBIFR AR A G RESEHanoi Battery
Joint Stock Company 2 30% /&4 °
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January

The Nielsen’s MarketTrack ranked GP Ultra Alkaline battery as the
No.1 brand in terms of sales volume in the alkaline battery segment
in Hong Kong for seven consecutive years.

The Group’s four battery factories in China were named Green
Medalists of the “Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards
2009/2010" by Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

March
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The Company received the “Caring Company” logo from the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service for the ninth consecutive year.

April
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The Nielsen’s MarketTrack ranked GP as the No.1 brand in both
volume sales and value sales in the rechargeable battery and charger
market in Hong Kong for seven consecutive years.

May
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A

The two flagship electric scooters, VX-1 and VX-2, manufactured by
Vectrix Corporation, were named “European e-Scooter of the Year”
in the over 45km/h and below 25km/h classes at the Clean Week
2020 in Belgium.

GP Batteries International Limited received the “2011 Global
Competitive Strategy Leardership Award in Nickel Battery Systems”
from Frost & Sullivan, a global research organization based in the US.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Victor LO Chung Wing GBS, OBE, JP, aged 61, joined Gold Peak Group in 1972
and has been appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive since 1990. He is also
the chairman of GP Industries Limited and the former chairman of GP Batteries
International Limited from 1990 to 1993. Mr Lo is the chairman of board of directors
of Hong Kong Design Centre and CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee of
Hong Kong SAR Government. He is also a member of the board of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority in Hong Kong, and the chairman of its Museum
Committee. In addition, he is the chairman of board of directors of The Hotel ICON
Limited, which is the teaching and research hotel under The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr Lo graduated from the Institute of Design of Illinois Institute of
Technology, US with a Bachelor of Science degree in Product Design. He is the
brother of Mr Kevin LO Chung Ping and father of Ms Grace LO Kit Yee.

Andrew NG Sung On aged 61, joined Gold Peak Group in 1975 and has been
appointed the Vice Chairman since 1990. He is the founder of the micro battery
and rechargeable battery divisions of Gold Peak Group and has been appointed the
chairman and chief executive of GP Batteries International Limited since 1993. Mr
Ng holds a Master of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, US.

Kevin LO Chung Ping aged 75, was the Chairman of the Company from 1983 to
1990. He is currently involved in the advanced electronic technology development of
the Group. A veteran in the television broadcasting industry, Mr Lo is also a member
of the board and the executive committee of the Hong Kong-listed Television
Broadcasts Limited. He is the brother of Mr Victor LO Chung Wing.

LEUNG Pak Chuen aged 61, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and has been appointed
an Executive Director since 1990. He is also the Deputy Chief Executive of the
Company and the executive vice chairman of GP Industries Limited. Mr Leung has
been in the electronics manufacturing industry for over 30 years and has played an
important role in setting up the Group’s major joint ventures in China in mid 1980s.
He is a member of The Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK and The International
Institute of Management. He graduated from Chu Hai College, Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Richard KU Yuk Hing aged 63, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978 and has been
appointed an Executive Director since 1990. He is also the vice chairman of GP
Batteries International Limited. He has over 30 years’ experience in international
marketing in the battery industry. Mr Ku graduated from Sophia University, Japan
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics.

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung SBS, JP, PhD, aged 63, has been appointed an Executive
Director since 1992. He is also an executive director of GP Industries Limited. He
graduated from Queen Mary College of the University of London and holds a
first class honour in Bachelor's degree in Electrical (Electronics) Engineering and a
Doctoral degree in Microwave Engineering.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAU Kwok Wai aged 57, has been re-designated as a Non-Executive Director since
2009. He first joined Gold Peak Group in 1979 and served as the General Manager
of the Company from 1990 to 1991 and from 2006 to 2009. He was appointed an
Executive Director from 1993 to 2009 and was an executive director of GP Batteries
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International Limited from 2006 to 2009. Mr Chau is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He graduated from the University
of Lancaster, UK and holds a Master of Arts degree in Accounting and Finance.

Raymond WONG Wai Kan aged 59, has been re-designated as a Non-Executive
Director since 2006. He joined Gold Peak Group in 1986 and served as the General
Manager of the Company from 1993 to 2006. He was appointed an Executive
Director of the Company from 1997 to 2006. Mr Wong is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is also a fellow member of both The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau aged 69, has been appointed a Non-Executive Director
since 1984. He is also a non-executive director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic
Industries Company Limited. A graduate in law from University College London,
Mr Cheung has been a practicing solicitor since 1970 and is currently a consultant
of Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co., Solicitors. He is qualified to practise law in Hong
Kong and the UK.

LUl Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 73, has been appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is currently an honorary chairman of The
Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, an honorary president of the Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong, an advisor of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre, and a member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He obtained his Master’s and Doctoral degrees
from the University of New South Wales in Australia and the University of
Saskatchewan in Canada respectively. He is currently the managing director of
Keystone Electronics Co. Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of AV
Concept Holdings Limited, L.K. Technology Holdings Limited, S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited, Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited and Asian Citrus Holdings Limited,
all of which are companies listed in Hong Kong.

Frank CHAN Chi Chung ACA, FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 57, has been appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director since 2004. He is currently a group executive
director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic Industries Company Limited and an
independent director of Singapore-listed Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited.
Mr Chan is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and an associate of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is qualified to practise as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong.

CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 64, has been appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director since 2005. Prof Chan is the chairman of both The Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association and Group 27 (Automobile Components) under the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, the honorary chairman of the Hong Kong
Green Manufacturing Alliance, an honorary president of the Hong Kong Association
for the Advancement of Science and Technology Limited, an honorary president
of the Surface Mount Technology Association Hong Kong Chapter, and a director
of the Hong Kong Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Ltd of the
Innovation and Technology Commission. Prof Chan is also the chairman of the
advisory committee of the Electronics / Electrical Appliances of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. He is currently the chairman and senior managing director of
Singapore-listed Surface Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Parklin HO Pak Nin aged 58, joined Gold Peak Group in 1979 and is currently
the senior director - global distribution strategies of the Company. He has been
seconded to GPI International Limited, the sales and marketing arm of the GP
Batteries Group, since 2007 and is currently its Director, Consumer Division. Mr Ho
has been in the electrical industry in Hong Kong for over 25 years. He graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences.

Brian LI Yiu Cheung DBA, aged 58, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and is currently
the managing director and an executive director of GP Industries Limited. He
is an executive committee member of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association, as well as a member of the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Electronics/Electrical Appliances
Industry Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
is also a member of the Departmental Advisory Committee in the Department of
Electronic Engineering and an advisor of the Cooperative Education Center of the
City University of Hong Kong. In addition, he is a co-opted member of Electronic
and Information Engineering Programme Board of VTC's Engineering Discipline,
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education and a director of the Automotive Parts
and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Ltd. Dr Li holds a Bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of British Columbia, Canada, a Master’s degree in
Global Business with Dean’s Honour from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Doctor of Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong.

Grace LO Kit Yee aged 40, joined Gold Peak Group in 2002 and is currently Deputy
General Manager of the Company. She is also General Manager of GP Acoustics
(HK) Limited which is the sales and marketing company for KEF products as well as
Marketing Director of the KEF Audio Group. She graduated from the Northwestern
University, US and holds a Master of Design degree from lllinois Institute of
Technology, US as well as an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. She is the daughter of Mr Victor LO Chung Wing.

WONG Man Kit aged 51, joined Gold Peak Group in 1991 and is currently the
General Manager as well as the Company Secretary of the Company. He is also an
executive director of GP Industries Limited. Mr Wong is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He holds an MBA degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14
to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the
deviations from A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the Code, details of which are set out
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board of directors (the “Board”) is on the overall
strategic development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2011, the Board comprised seven executive directors
(one of whom is the Chairman), three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The biographical details of all
directors of the Company are set out on pages 25 to 27 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Andrew NG Sung On (Vice Chairman)

Kevin LO Chung Ping

Paul LO Chung Wai (resigned with effect from 1 April 2011)
LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

Non-Executive Directors:
CHAU Kwok Wai
Raymond WONG Wai Kan
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUl Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent in full to all directors within reasonable time prior
to the meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the company secretary and copies of minutes are sent to the directors for
their records. Each Board member is entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary and, upon reasonable request and
in appropriate circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, four board meetings were held and
the attendance of each director was set out as follows:

oooO0oOooooOoooon

oooag Name of director Number of board meetings attended/held
ooo Victor LO Chung Wing 4/4
ooo Andrew NG Sung On 4/4
ooo Kevin LO Chung Ping 0/4
ooo Paul LO Chung Wai 1/4
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 4/4
ooo Richard KU Yuk Hing 4/4
ooo Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 4/4
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai 2/4
ooo Raymond WONG Wai Kan 3/4
ooo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 2/4
ooo LUl Ming Wah 4/4
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung 3/4
ooo CHAN Kei Biu 3/4
ooooooo CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company. Although A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, the Board considers that the present structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Group as the Group’s principal businesses are
separately listed and each business is run by a different board of directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the needs of the business of the Company.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

A.4.1 of the Code stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all non-
executive directors are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company. Since their appointments will be reviewed when they are
due for re-election, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those set out in the Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a nomination committee as the duties
and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code
are performed by the Board collectively with no directors being involved
in fixing his own terms of appointment and no independent non-executive
directors being involved in assessing his own independence.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit Committee comprised:

LUl Ming Wah (Chairman)
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau
Frank CHAN Chi Chung
CHAN Kei Biu

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in legal,
business and accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have been posted on the
Company's website.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, two Audit Committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

poooooooo

oooag Name of member Number of meetings attended/held
ood LUl Ming Wah 2/2
ooo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 1/2
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung 1/2
ood CHAN Kei Biu 1/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
March 2011 included reviewing the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2010 and the unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 September 2010, with recommendations to the
Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
endorse the remuneration policy of the directors and senior management
and to make recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee has taken
sufficient measures to ensure that no directors is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Remuneration Committee
comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)
LUl Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

LEUNG Pak Chuen

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted
on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, there was one Remuneration
Committee meeting and the attendance of each committee member was
set out as follows:

ooooooooo

oooag Name of member Number of meetings attended/held
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung Al
ood LUl Ming Wah 11
ood CHAN Kei Biu 11
ooo Victor LO Chung Wing Al
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 171
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2011 included reviewing the remuneration policy of the
directors and senior management and the remuneration of the directors
and senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as well as
information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of internal control
of the Group and its effectiveness covering the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control system
to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external
auditor of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31 March
2011 were as follows:

goopoooao

oooo Services rendered Fees paid/payable
ood

HK$'000

oooo Audit services 4,128
ooooo Non-audit services 525
0o Total 4,653
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity are set out in
notes 46, 47 and 48 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 43 and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements. An interim dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share was paid to the
shareholders during the year. A final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share is
proposed by the directors. On the basis of 5.5 HK cents per share for the
entire year, total dividends amount to HK$43,158,000.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$29,893,000 to expand its business. Details of movements
in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2011 are represented by the retained profits and the dividend
reserve totalling HK$125,426,000 (2010: HK$123,799,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$334,000.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing, Chairman & Chief Executive
Andrew NG Sung On, Vice Chairman

Kevin LO Chung Ping

Paul LO Chung Wai (resigned with effect from 1 April 2011)
LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

Non-executive directors:
CHAU Kwok Wai
Raymond WONG Wai Kan
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau
LUl Ming Wah*

Frank CHAN Chi Chung*
CHAN Kei Biu*

* Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Articles 95 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Victor LO Chung Wing, Raymond WONG Wai Kan,
CHAU Kwok Wai, LUl Ming Wah and CHAN Kei Biu are due to retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, Messrs. Victor
LO Chung Wing, CHAU Kwok Wai, LUl Ming Wah and CHAN Kei Biu offer
themselves for re-election.

No directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") ) which were required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Appendix 10 “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in the Listing Rules to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) Interest in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2011, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

gooooooo
Number of ordinary shares held

gooooag
oooooo
Percentage of

oooog 0oooDo oooo oooo issued share

Personal Family Corporate Total capital of

oo Name of director interests interests interests interests the Company
%

ooo Victor LO Chung Wing 107,082,008 - 125,807,760* 232,889,768 29.68
ooo Andrew NG Sung On 99,682,219 595,713 125,807,760* 226,085,692 28.81
ooo Kevin LO Chung Ping 892,855 4,627,235 - 5,520,090 0.70
ooo Paul LO Chung Wai 32,302,166 - - 32,302,166 4.12
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 4,575,114 - - 4,575,114 0.58
ooo Richard KU Yuk Hing 2,629,684 - - 2,629,684 0.34
ooo Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 677,855 - - 677,855 0.09
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai 350,000 - - 350,000 0.04
ooo Raymond WONG Wai Kan 2,557,256 - - 2,557,256 0.33
ooo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 2,782,212 - - 2,782,212 0.35
oogd LUI Ming Wah = = - - -
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung - - - - -
oogd CHAN Kei Biu = = = - -

* 000O0O0OO0OO0OD0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OoOwell Glory
International LimitedO O 00 [J 125,807,7600 0 0 0 O

* 125,807,760 ordinary shares were beneficially owned by Well Glory International
Limited, a company in which Messrs. Victor LO Chung Wing and Andrew NG Sung
On have beneficial interests.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations (long
positions)
As at 31 March 2011, the direct beneficial interests of the directors and
the chief executive in the shares of GP Batteries International Limited
(“GPBI"), a 49.7% owned associate of GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind"),
and Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan) Limited (“GPIT”), a 79.6% owned
subsidiary of GPBI, and GP Ind, an 81.1% owned subsidiary of the
Company, were as follows:

goo0o00OO0OO0OO00OOO0OOOCOOOO0O0
Number of ordinary shares and
percentage of their issued share capital held

oooo oooo GPO O
oo Name of director GPBI GPIT GP Ind
fin| oo oo

Number % Number % Number %
ooo Victor LO Chung Wing 200,000 0.18 - - 300,000 0.06
ooo Andrew NG Sung On 833,332 0.76 500,000 0.25 378,412 0.07
ooo Kevin LO Chung Ping - - - - - -
ooo Paul LO Chung Wai 80,000 0.07 - - - -
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen - - - - 1,608,000 0.32
ooo Richard KU Yuk Hing 193,000 0.18 200,000 0.10 270,000 0.05
ooo Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung - - - - 155,000 0.03
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai - - - - 481,232 0.09
ooo Raymond WONG Wai Kan 374,000 0.34 100,000 0.05 1,598,827 0.31
ooo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 20,000 0.02 - - - -
ooo LUl Ming Wah - - - - - -
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung - - - - - -
ooo CHAN Kei Biu - - - - - -

dboooo0ooOobOOoO0oo0ooo0oOooOoooon
dboooo0ooOobOOoO0oo0ooo0oOooOoooon
oobooooboooobooOooood
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors, the
chief executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company and GP Ind are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following tables disclose the movements in the number of share
options of the Company, GP Ind and GPBI which have been granted to the

directors of the Company, during the year:

(@) The Company’s share option scheme

pooood
ooooooo
oooooo
gooo
oooOooo
Number of
option shares
granted
during
oooo the year and
oooo oooooog Exercise outstanding
oo Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price at 31.3.2011
oo
HKS$
ooo Victor LO Chung Wing 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 750,000
ooo Andrew NG Sung On 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 750,000
goo Kevin LO Chung Ping 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 500,000
goo Paul LO Chung Wai 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 500,000
goo LEUNG Pak Chuen 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 700,000
ooo Richard KU Yuk Hing 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 700,000
ooo Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 700,000
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000
goo Raymond WONG Wai Kan 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000
goo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000
ooo LUl Ming Wah 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000
ooo Frank CHAN Chi Chung 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000
ooo CHAN Kei Biu 27.04.2010 27.04.2010 - 26.04.2015 1.270 300,000

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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0000000000000 oo DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)
(b) GPOOOOOOOO (b) GP Ind’s share option scheme:
opoooo
Number of option shares
oooooo gooooao
oooo 00000 O0O0O0000
goooo gooo Exercised gooo
oooao oooooo Exercise = Outstanding during  Outstanding
oo Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.4.2010 the year  at 31.3.2011
goooo
S$
ooo Victor LO Chung 14.4.2000 14.4.2002-13.4.2010 0.456 300,000 (300,000) -
Wing 4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 600,000 - 600,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003-13.8.2012 0.550 384,000 - 384,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 384,000 - 384,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 400,000 - 400,000
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 350,000 - 350,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 380,000 - 380,000
ooo Andrew CHUANG 4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 200,000 - 200,000
Siu Leung 14.8.2002 14.8.2003-13.8.2012 0.550 130,000 - 130,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 130,000 - 130,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 150,000 - 150,000
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai 5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 180,000 - 180,000
ooo Raymond WONG 15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 140,000 - 140,000
Wai Kan 5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 180,000 - 180,000
() OOODDOOOODOOO (c) GPBI's share option scheme:
opoooo
Number of option shares
oooooo gooooo
oooo 00000 O0O0O0000
goooo gooo Lapsed gooo
oooao oooooo Exercise  Outstanding during  Outstanding
oo Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.4.2010 the year  at 31.3.2011
goooo
S$
ooo Andrew NG 11.10.2000 11.10.2002-10.10.2010 1.600 200,000 (200,000) -
Sung On 5.8.2002 5.8.2004-4.8.2012 1.250 190,000 - 190,000
25.6.2003 25.6.2005-24.6.2013 2.500 190,000 - 190,000
ooo Richard KU 25.6.2003 25.6.2005-24.6.2013 2.500 170,000 - 170,000
Yuk Hing
000000000 D0ODODOoDO0O0O0DoOOoOoOoO Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive, their
8000000000000 0OoooooCO spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for
ooooooooo the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during

the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

(c) GPBI's share option scheme: (continued)
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors or the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company:

ooo0O0oo0ooo0oOoon

ooooooo Percentage of
oo oo Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
Well Glory International Limited oono 125,807,760 16.03%
Beneficial owner
Ring Lotus Investment Limited (“Ring Lotus”) ooooooo 39,337,143 (note) 5.01%
Interests of controlled oooo
corporation
HSBC International Trustee Limited ogo 39,337,143 (note) 5.01%
("HSBC Trustee") Trustee oooo

00000000000 DORiIng Lotusd HSBC Trusteed O O
0000000000000 0DOOHSBC Trusteed OO
0000000000D00039,337,1430 000000
00000HSBC Trusteed 0 0 O O O ORing LotusO O
oooooooooooo

dooooobOobOOoO0oCcOooOoOOobooooon
coo0o0o0OoO0ooOO0O0OO0OO0OOmOoOooOoooOonoon
oooo@mooooooooooooooooon
ooo0ooOO0oDOoOOoO0oCcOooOOobOOooooooon
ooooooboDooOOoO0oCcooOobOooooooon
000000000000 D0O00D0O00O00055%
ooono

Note: According to the two corporate substantial shareholder notices filed by Ring Lotus
and HSBC Trustee respectively on 30 March 2011, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in 39,337,143 shares in its capacity as the trustee of these shares, which were
in turn owned by Ring Lotus, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee, as interests
of controlled corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, the directors and the chief
executive of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the
SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than share options as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 March 2011 and there had
been no exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 14.52% and 45.22% respectively of the
Group'’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for 5.01% and 18.83% respectively of the
Group'’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March 2011,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Details of the Company’s audit committee and remuneration committee are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 32.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of a significant event occurring after the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive
28 June 2011
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TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak
Industries (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 134,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position and
the Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2011



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

OO 0O OO vearended3iMarch2011 0000000000000000

2011 2010
oo ooo ooo
NOTES HK$000 HK$’000
oogd Turnover 7 1,957,516 1,457,502
oooo Cost of sales (1,433,754) (1,047,850)
o0 Gross profit 523,762 409,652
oooo Other income 36,806 93,003
ooooooog Selling and distribution expenses (189,095) (168,603)
oooo Administrative expenses (252,678) (260,524)
oooo Other expenses (9,382) (41,750)
go0o0ooooooo Change in fair value of investment
properties (3,611) -
oo0ooooooooooo Impairment loss recognised on available-
for-sale investments 19 (82,272) (134,367)
oooo Finance costs 8 (44,909) (43,963)
ooooOoooo Share of results of associates 164,781 184,501
Do0d0o0ooOooooooo Net loss on deemed partial disposal/
gooooo disposal of associates (5,069) (9,576)
do0ooooooooo Net gain on disposal/deemed partial
oooooooooooo disposal of subsidiaries - 79
Oodo0oooooooo Discount on deemed acquisition of
ooooo additional interest in a subsidiary 16 - 103,409
000000000000 O0O00 Discounton acquisition of additional
interest in an associate - 4,841
0000000000000 O00O Discount on acquisition of a jointly
controlled entity 39 - 53,711
ooooo Profit before taxation 9 138,333 190,413
ogd Taxation 11 (24,822) (8,923)
oooo Profit for the year 113,511 181,490
oooo Attributable to:
oooooo Owners of the Company 85,084 128,241
ooooo Non-controlling interests 28,427 53,249
113,511 181,490
oooo Earnings per share
oo Basic 13 10.84 HK cents  20.55 HK cents
oo Diluted 13 10.83 HK cents N/A

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

D D D D D D D Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OO0OOOOO

2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oooo Profit for the year 113,511 181,490
oooooono Other comprehensive income:
000000000000 MmOOO Share of other comprehensive
income (expense) of associates 27,444 (13,819)
doooooooooooo Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations 17,976 124,801
ooooo Reclassification adjustments:
oooooooooooo Share of other comprehensive income (expense)
jd0o0o0ooOoomooo of associates released upon disposal of associates 12,799 (719)
oooooooooo Exchange differences released upon
oooo deregistration of subsidiaries (257) (21,045)
oooooooooooo Exchange differences released upon
oooo disposal of a subsidiary - 8
oooooooo Other comprehensive income for the year 57,962 89,226
ocoooocooao Total comprehensive income for the year 171,473 270,716
ooooooood Total comprehensive income attributable to:
oooooo Owners of the Company 130,006 185,738
ooooog Non-controlling interests 41,467 84,978
171,473 270,716

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
D D D D |:| D D Asat3lMarch2011 O00O0O0O0OD0OD0OOOOOO

2011

2010

oo ooo ooo
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ooooo Non-current assets
ooono Investment properties 14 75,362 240
oooooooo Property, plant and equipment 15 249,192 262,371
ooooooog Interests in associates 17 1,804,188 1,747,147
oooooo Available-for-sale investments 19 125,529 187,868
ooooog Long term receivables 20 130,718 62,151
oooo Technical know-how 21 640 674
oo Trademarks 22 27,188 31,370
oo Goodwill 23 63,560 60,981
oooooo Deferred taxation assets 32 1,187 -
2,477,564 2,352,802
oooo Current assets
od Inventories 25 320,850 288,299
oooooooooooo Trade and other receivables and
gooo prepayments 26 453,853 702,954
oooao Dividend receivable 3,000 2,978
ooooo Taxation recoverable 473 53
oooooooooo Bank balances, deposits and cash 27 474,409 404,537
1,252,585 1,398,821
oooo Current liabilities
ooooooo Creditors and accrued charges 28 391,653 385,968
oooo Taxation payable 44,906 55,060
ooooomooooog Obligations under finance leases
— amount due within one year 29 1,447 1,662
oooooooog Bank loans and import loans 30 733,080 1,130,620
1,171,086 1,573,310
ooomoomma Net current assets (liabilities) 81,499 (174,489)
ooooooooo Total assets less current liabilities 2,559,063 2,178,313
ooooo Non-current liabilities
ooooomooooog Obligations under finance leases
— amount due after one year 29 1,155 1,107
ono Borrowings 31 525,703 222,942
oooooo Deferred taxation liabilities 32 23,189 15,785
550,047 239,834
gooo Net assets 2,009,016 1,938,479

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION «conmnueny
OO00O0000OpDDD asatsiMach2011 000000000000

2011 2010
oo ooo ooo
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000

ooooog Capital and reserves
oo Share capital 33 392,346 392,346
oo Reserves 1,178,634 1,081,694
do00oooooooo Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,570,980 1,474,040
ooooo Non-controlling interests 36 438,036 464,439
oooo Total equity 2,009,016 1,938,479

04300013400 0000000000000 The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 134 were approved
Co000ooOoOoO0oOooOooOoOoOoooOoOoOooo and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2011 and

oooo are signed on its behalf by:
ooo ooo Victor LO Chung Wing Andrew NG Sung On
oo oo Director Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
oo Asat31March201ll O00O0O0O0OOOOOOOOOOO

2011

2010

oo ooo ooo
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
gooog Non-current assets
oooooooo Property, plant and equipment 15 17,237 28,586
oooooooog Interests in subsidiaries 16 1,307,996 1,305,419
oooooo Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 47,862 49,862
1,373,095 1,383,867
oooo Current assets
ooooooooooao Other receivables and prepayments 20,527 12,538
oooooo Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 110,422 117,199
oooooooooo Bank balances, deposits and cash 27 51,693 58,353
182,642 188,090
oooo Current liabilities
ooooooo Creditors and accrued charges 8,106 32,691
goooooo Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 8,648 7,303
ooooomooooog Obligations under finance leases
— amount due within one year 29 311 720
oooo Bank loans 30 324,211 309,354
341,276 350,068
oooooo Net current liabilities (158,634) (161,978)
ooooooooo Total assets less current liabilities 1,214,461 1,221,889
ooooog Non-current liabilities
oooooooog Amount due to a subsidiary 16 11,721 11,721
ooooomooooog Obligations under finance leases
— amount due after one year 29 - 311
ono Borrowings 31 150,833 165,044
162,554 177,076
oooo Net assets 1,051,907 1,044,813
ooooo Capital and reserves
oo Share capital 33 392,346 392,346
og Reserves 35 659,561 652,467
oooo Total equity 1,051,907 1,044,813
ooo ooo Victor LO Chung Wing Andrew NG Sung On
oo oo Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

|:| |:| D D |:| D D Yearended 31 March2011 O0O00O0O0OO0OO0OCOOCOOOOOO

ooooooooo

Attributable to owners of the Company

0ooo
0o 00 oooo ooo o0oo
oooo 0000 Available- 0o oo
00 0000 OOODO  Propety [OOOO0 OOOO Capital ~ forsale 0OCO Share 000D Non- [0OOO
Share Share Legal revaluation Translation ~ Capital redemption investments Dividend option  Retained 00 controlling Total
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
ooo ooo o0oo ooo ooo 0oo o0oo ooo 0oo ooo ooo ooo 0oo ooo
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
0oo3so 00o3so 000360
(note 35) (note 35) (note 36)
gopoooooon At 1 April 2009 274,643 463,935 14,830 83,670 (235,406) 5,681 35,358 (827) 8,239 - 515488 1,165,611 643317 1,808,928
0000000000000  Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - - 83,505 - - - - - - 83,505 41,29 124,801
00oooonoooo Share of other comprehensive
0ooooo (expense) income of associates - - - - (11,134) (17) - 827 - - - (10,329) (3495 (13,819)
pooooooooo Other comprehensive expense
oooooo released upon disposal of
associates - - - - (610) (18) - - - - - (628) (91) (19)
oooooooooo Exchange differences released upon
0ooo deregistration of subsidiaries - - - - (15,064) - - - - - - (15064  (5981)  (21,045)
000000000000 Exchange differences released upon
oooa disposal of a subsidiary - - - - 8 - - - - - - 8 - 8
gooo Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 128241 128241 53249 181,490
000000000000  Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - - - 56,705 (35) - 827 - - 18241 185738 84978 270,716
gooooo Issue of rights shares 117,703 35312 - - - - - - - - - 153,015 - 153,015
pooooo Share issue expenses - (5,937) - - - - - - - - - (5,937) - (5,937)
gooo Transfer of reserves - - - - - 3137 - - - - (3,137) - - -
pooooooo Transfer upon cancellation of
share options - - - - - - - - - - 331 331 (331) -
00000000000 Reserves released upon disposal of
properties - - - (48868) - - - - - - 48,868 - - -
0ooooooooo Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (246,903)  (246,903)
nDoooooooo Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (16,900)  (16,900)
nDoooooooo Capital contribution by
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 278 278
noooo Dividend paid
00oooooooo - 2009 final dividend - - - - - - - - (8,239) - - (8.239) - (8,239)
goooooooon - 2010 interim dividend = = = = = = = = = = (16,479)  (16,479) = (16,479)
oooo Dividend proposed
goooooooon - 2010 final dividend = = = = = = = = 21,464 = (27,464) = - -
117,703 29375 - (48868) - 3,137 - - 19,225 - 2119 122,691 (263,856) (141,165
000000000000 At31 March 2010 392,346 493310 14,830 34802 (178,701) 8,783 35,358 - 2144 - BA5848 1474040 464,439 1938479
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conminue)

ERERERERERERE 000 Year ended 31 March 2011 DOO0O0O0OODOO0OODODOOOOO

poooooooo

Attributable to owners of the Company

oooo
oo 00 0ooo ooo ooo
oooo 0000  Available- on on
00 0000 OOOO  Propety 0OOOO OOOO Capital ~ forsale 0000 Share 000D Non- [0OOO
Share Share Legal revaluation Translati Capital p Dividend option  Retained 00 controlling Total
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
ooo ooo o0on ooo ooo oon ooo ooo ooo o0on ooo ooo oon ooo
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
0oo3so 00o3s0 000360
(note 35) (note 35) (note 36)
oopoooooon At 1 April 2010 392346 493310 14,830 34,802 (178,701) 8,783 35,358 - 217,464 - 645848 1474040 464439 1,938,479
0000000000000  Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - - 12,928 - - - - - - 12,928 5,048 17,976
0000000000000  Share of other comprehensive
oooo income (expense) of associates = = = - 19917 (26) = 2,068 = = - N9 5485 27,440
00o0ooonoo Other comprehensive income
ooooooo released upon disposal of
associates = = = = 10,241 = = = - - - 10,241 2,558 12,799
ooooooooo Exchange differences released upon
ooooo deregistration of subsidiaries - - - - (206) - - - - - - (206) (51) (257)
0ooo Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 85,084 85,084 8421 11351
000000000000  Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - - - 42,880 (26) - 2,068 - - 85,084 130,006 467 171473
gooo Transfer of reserves - - 1,200 - = - - (1,290) = = -
0o00oooo Transfer upon cancellation of share
options - - - - - - - - - (268) 368 100 (100) -
0ooooooooo Recognition of share based payment - - - - - - - - - 5,735 - 5,735 - 5,735
0000o00oo0o Acquisition/deemed acquisition of
0000 additional interests in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,180 - - - - - 8180  (46,161)  (37,981)
ooooooooo Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (21,609 (21,609)
goooo Dividend paid
00000000000 -2010 final dividend - - - - - - - - (27,464) - - (27,464) - (27.464)
goooooooooo =201 interim dividend - - - - - - - - - - (19617)  (19,617) - (19617)
pooo Dividend proposed
goooooooooo -2011 final dividend = = = = - - - - 23541 - (23,541) - - -
- - - - - 9,470 - - (3,923) 5,467 (44,080)  (33,066)  (67,870) (100,936
000000000000 At31 March 2011 392,346 493310 14,830 34802 (135821) 18227 35,358 2068 23541 5467 686,852 1570980 438,036 2,009,016

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

O000O0OOD Year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooooooooo Cash inflows from operating activities
ooooo Profit before taxation 138,333 190,413
ooo Adjustments for:
oooooooo Share of results of associates (164,781) (184,501)
oooo Amortisation of trademarks 4,182 4,183
gooooono Amortisation of technical know-how - 2,760
0000000o0ooo Impairment loss recognised on long term receivables 3,646 -
oooooooog Impairment loss recognised on technical know-how 104 98
oooooooon Loss on deregistration of associates 24 -
gooooo Share option expenses 5,735 -
O0ooooooooooooo Discount on acquisition of a jointly controlled entity - (53,711)
00o0o000ooooooooo Discount on deemed acquisition of additional interest
oo in a subsidiary - (103,409)
00o0o000ooooooooo Discount on acquisition of additional interest in an
associate - (4,841)
0ooooooooooo Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 38,855 35,321
0oooooooooo Release of prepaid lease payments - 222
0oooooooooooo Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,546) (18,035)
0oooooooooooon Net loss on deemed partial disposal/disposal of
ooooooooono associates 5,069 9,576
000o000ooooooooo Net gain on disposal/deemed partial disposal of
oooooooo subsidiaries - (79)
oooooooooo Change in fair value of investment properties 3,611 -
oooo Interest income (9,433) (26,988)
oooooooon Interest on bank and other borrowings 44,866 43,932
gooooooo Interest on obligations under finance leases 43 31
oooo Dividend income (3,000) (7,698)
ooooooooo Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (859) (21,045)
ooooooo Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
oooo investments 82,272 134,367
0ooooooooooo Impairment loss recognised on interests in associates - 7,952
oooooooooooo Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on inter-
ooooo company balances (6,947) 56,228
0000000000000 O000 Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital 134,174 64,776
ooooo Decrease in inventories 196 50,162
oooooooooooo (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables and
gooomoomao prepayments (47,985) 243,600
doooooomoomao (Decrease) increase in creditors and accrued charges (35,606) 62,143
do0ooooooo Cash generated from operations 50,779 420,681
ooooooog Taxation paid in Hong Kong (6,098) -
O0Do00OOooOoooooo Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (29,224) (12,644)
0000ooooooooooo Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 523 932
oooooooooono Net cash generated from operating activities 15,980 408,969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS «conmuen)
oooooon (00 [ Yearended 31 March2011 O0OOOO0OO0OO0OO0O0OOOOOOO

2011 2010
oo ooo ooo
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
oooooooo Cash flows from investing activities
0 O Gerard Corporation Pty Ltd. Proceed from consideration receivable
[0 Gerard CorporationI1] 0 O for the disposal of partial interest of
oooooooo investment in Gerard Corporation Pty Ltd.
("Gerard Corporation”) 152,857 -
ooooooooo Dividends received from associates 90,154 40,591
00oooooooo Proceeds from disposal of associates 53,230 220,964
oooooooooooo Proceeds from consideration receivable
ooooooo for the disposal of the Group’s electrical
business in Australia 53,152 -
00o0oooooooo Proceeds from disposal of property,

oo plant and equipment 17,082 26,491
oooo Interest received 5,528 3,781
ooooooooo Proceeds from disposal of investment

properties 245 103,000
oooooooooo Purchase of property, plant and equipment (28,009) (23,198)
gooooo Purchase of investment properties (4,168) -
ooooooooo Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease

o0 payments - 25,085
oooo Dividends received - 7,698
oooooooooo Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity

ooooooooooooo (net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) 39 - (17,798)
ooooooaon Acquisition of additional interests in

gooo associates - (11,364)
oooooooo Disposal of a subsidiary (net of cash and cash

odooooooooooo equivalent disposed of) 38 - (1,541)
Oo0oooooooono Net cash from investing activities 340,071 373,709
oooooo Cash flows from financing activities

ooooo New borrowings raised 762,370 220,000
o0oooooooooog Exercise of share options by a listed

subsidiary 872 -
gooooo Repayment of borrowings (905,959) (877,214)
gooo Dividends paid (47,081) (24,718)
oooooooooooo Interest on bank and other borrowings paid (43,173) (45,846)
dooooooooooooo Repurchase of treasury shares

by a listed subsidiary (35,905) -
ooooooooooooon Dividends paid to non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries (21,609) (16,900)
oooooooooo Consideration paid on acquisition of

oooo additional interests in subsidiaries (2,948) (38,105)

ooooooooooao Principal payments for obligations under
finance leases (2,109) (1,562)
doooooooooo Interest on obligations under finance
leases paid (43) (31)
00oooooooo Proceeds from issue of right shares - 153,015
o0ooooooooooon Capital contributed by non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - 278
oooooooooo Share issue expense paid on issue of rights
shares - (5,937)
oo00O0oooOooo Net cash used in financing activities (295,585) (637,020)
Oooooooooon Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 60,466 145,658
ooooooooon Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 404,537 256,971
o00O0oooOooo Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9,406 1,908
0000000000000 DO000 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
ooooooo comprising bank balances, deposits and cash 474,409 404,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries, associates and a jointly controlled entity are set
out in notes 46, 47 and 48 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ( HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and separate financial statements
HKAS 32 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

Classification of rights issues

Eligible hedged items

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to HKFRSs
2008

HK(IFRIC)* - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

HK - INT 5 Presentation of financial statements - Classification by the

borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on

demand clause

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations in the current year has had
no material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and separate financial statements

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has resulted in changes

in the Group’s accounting policies for changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries of the Group.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cconmmueny

00000 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 00000000 COCOOODOO

2. 000000D0OOOOOO0OO0OO0OODOoOOOO 2. APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
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STANDARDS ( HKFRS(S)”) (conTiNUED)

Specifically, the revised standard has affected the Group’s accounting
policies regarding changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its
subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control. In prior years, in the
absence of specific requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in
existing subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the acquisition
of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being
recognised, when appropriate; for decreases in interests in existing
subsidiaries that did not involve a loss of control, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss. Under HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008), all such increases or decreases are dealt with in equity,
with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event
or other circumstances, the revised standard requires the Group to
derecognise all assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their
carrying amounts and to recognise the fair value of the consideration
received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised
at its fair value at the date control is lost. The resulting difference is
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from 1 April 2010 in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions.

The application of the revised standard has affected the accounting
for the Group'’s acquisition of additional 2.5% equity interests in GP
Electronics (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“GPEHZ"), indirectly held by its non-
wholly owned subsidiary, GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind”) which is
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and its shares are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Singapore Stock
Exchange”), for a cash consideration of approximately HK$2,948,000,
thereby increasing the Group's interest in GPEHZ from 92.5% to 95.0%.
The change in policy has resulted in the difference of HK$149,000
between the consideration paid of HK$2,948,000 and the amount of
non-controlling interests adjusted of HK$3,097,000 being recognised
directly in equity, instead of being recognised as discount on acquisition
of additional interest in a subsidiary. Therefore, the change in
accounting policy has resulted in an increase in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$149,000 as at 31 March 2011 instead
of an increase in profit of HK$149,000 for the year. In addition, the
cash consideration paid in the current year of HK$2,948,000 has been
included in cash flows from financing activities instead of investing
activities.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmueny

ERERERERERE 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OCODODOO

2. 0000000000 O0O0OOO0OoOoo0ooo
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APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( HKFRS(S)”) (conTinuED)

In addition, the Group’s interest in GP Ind increased from 79.49%
to0 81.12% as at 31 March 2011 due to the combined effect of the
repurchase of treasury shares offset with the exercising of share
options by non-controlling shareholders. The change in policy in such
transactions has resulted in the difference of HK$8,031,000 between
the net effect of the repurchase of treasury shares and the exercising
of share option of HK$35,033,000 and the amount of non-controlling
interests adjusted of HK$43,064,000 being recognised directly in equity,
instead of being recognised as gain on deemed disposal. Therefore,
the change in accounting policy has resulted in an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$8,031,000 instead of
an increase in profit of HK$8,031,000 for the year. In addition, the
consideration paid in current year of HK$35,033,000 has been included
in cash flows from financing activities instead of investing activities.

In addition, under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), the definition of
non-controlling interests has been changed. Specifically, under the
revised standard, non-controlling interests is defined as the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. The
application of the revised standard has resulted in share option reserve
relating to the employee share option plan of GP Ind, being included
as part of non-controlling interests in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity
(see note 36 for details). Previously, such share options reserve was
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010’
Disclosures - Transfer of financial asstes®
Financial instruments*

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangement*
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets®
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures®
HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate financial statements*
(

HKAS 28 (Revised) Investments in associates and joint ventures*
HK(IFRIC) - INT 14 (Amendments)  Prepayments of a minimum funding requirements®
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HK(IFRIC) - INT 19

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011,

as appropriate.

o U A WN

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
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STANDARDS ( HKFRS(S)”) (conTiNUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as revised in
November 2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the presentation of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year ending 31
March 2014 and that the application of the new standard may affect
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale equity
investments which are currently measured at cost less impairment and
will be measured at fair value upon adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmueny
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APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( HKFRS(S)”) (conTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets” mainly deal with the measurement of deferred
tax for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”. Based on
the amendments, for the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of the investment properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted in certain circumstances. The directors anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 12 will not have a significant
impact on deferred tax recognised for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All inter-company transactions, balances, income and expense are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.
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Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Prior to 1 April 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
in excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries on
or after 1 April 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuEeD)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
prior to 1 April 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in the same
manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For decreases in
interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.

Business combination

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition was measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

When an acquisition of associates/subsidiaries is achieved in stages,
goodwill arising represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant associates/subsidiaries at the date
of each acquisition. Any adjustment to those fair values relating to the
acquirer’s interests held previously is a revaluation and is recognised in
equity.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business or a jointly controlled
entity (which is accounted for using proportionate consolidation) is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or a jointly controlled
entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the ordinary course of business, net of discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuEeD)

Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of
the interests in associate and is not tested for impairment separately.
Instead, the entire carrying amount of the interests in associate is
tested for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate. Any reversal of
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the interests in associate subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.
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Joint ventures

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which ventures have joint control over the economic activity of
the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation. The Group'’s share of each of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are
combined with the Group’s similar line items, line by line, in the
consolidated financial statements.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group’s interest in a
jointly controlled entity is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business
or a jointly controlled entity (see above).

Any excess of the Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profit or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost or valuation less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS
16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to make
regular revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and
accordingly no further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out.
Prior to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of these assets was credited to the property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will be dealt with
as an expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if any, on the
property revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the
same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or where shorter, the
terms of the leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method or the reducing balance method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNUED)
Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Trademarks
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Technical know-how

The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the
production of new products is amortised on a straight-line method,
over a period of three to five years from the date of acquisition or
over the licence period, whichever is shorter, over their estimated
useful lives.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activities.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful live.
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GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets included loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmmueny

00000 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 00000000 COCOOODOO

3. 00000 oo 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuED)
O0000ooo Financial instruments (continued)
O00M0ooo Financial assets (continued)
ooooooo Loans and receivables

00000 OoOo0oooOoOoOOOCoO0O00O
obooOO0ooO0o0ooOOoDOOooOoooDoOooDoooo
gooDomoooooooboooooooooa
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
oobooooocmoooocobooooooo
oom

ooooooon
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
oooooocoooOobOoocOoooooooo
obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooOO0ooO0o0ooOOoDOOooOoooDoOooDoooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oooooooooooooo

oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
ooboooooooooomobooooooo
oobooooocmoooocobooooooo
obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooOO0ooO0o0ooOOoDOOooOoooDoOooDoooo
ooo

oooonoo
obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooOO0ooO0o0ooOOoDOOooOoooDoOooDoooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooo0oO0ooooooooo

obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooOO0ooO0o0ooOOoDOOooOoooDoOooDoooo
goooood

ooboooobOooooOooooooooo

0 00DOoOoooOoOoooooooo

0 00oOoooooooooooooon

0 D0o0ocoooooooooood

0O 0ooDooooOoooooooooooao
oooo

Loans and receivables (including long term receivables, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, bank balances, deposits
and cash) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturing investments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in available-for-sale investment
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale investment reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below). The Group designated
the shareholder’s loan relating to an unlisted investment as available-
for-sale financial assets since the Group intends to capitalise the
shareholder’s loans as further investments in these investments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets of the Group, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of 30 to 120
days, and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables and amounts due from subsidiaries where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated income
statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair
value will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in available-
for-sale investment reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors and other payables, amounts
due to subsidiaries, bank loans and import loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset
in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuEeD)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to a qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
cost (see below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value, are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the translation reserve.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plan are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
effect of the change in estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002, or
granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies which are
described in note 3, management has made the following judgments
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2011, the carrying amount
of goodwill was HK$63,560,000 (2010: HK$60,981,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 23.

Warranty claims associated with the disposal of the Group’s electrical
business in Australia

In 2003, the disposal of the Group’s electrical business in Australia,
being electrical wiring devices and installation systems (“EWDIS")
business, to Schneider Electric S.A. (“Schneider”) included a warranty
clause for contingencies. Prior to the expiry of the warranty period, an
intellectual property claim was initiated against the disposed EWDIS
business in Australia. As at 31 March 2011, the claim has not yet been
resolved. On 29 April 2011, the Australian Court dismissed the case
but an appeal was filed by the plaintiff. The result of this claim and
the timing of the resolution affect the final discharge of the Group’s
warranty liabilities and the Tarway Loan as discussed in details in note
26(b) and (c). Management believes that the intellectual property claim
is without merits and after seeking legal opinion, expects the case to be
decided in the Group's favour.

Recoverability of the Tarway Loan (as defined in note 26(c))

The Gerard Family, as defined in note 26(c), has substantially repaid
the Tarway Loan in accordance with the agreed schedule. Out of the
unsettled amount of AUD7,350,000 (equivalent to HK$59,147,000),
AUD850,000 (equivalent to HK$6,840,000) will be settled in cash in July
2011 while the remaining AUD6,500,000 (equivalent to HK$52,307,000)
will be settled with the Gerard Vendor's (as defined in note 26(b)) share
of the Pooled Retention Money upon its release and cash. Management
is confident of the recovery of the Tarway Loan after considering the
possible favourable outcome of the litigation and the Gerard Family’s
good past repayment record.
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Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investments

Management has determined that the fair value of the Group's
available-for-sale investments (see note 19) cannot be reliably measured
and accordingly, these available-for-sale investments are stated at
cost less impairment. In determining whether the available-for-sale
investments are impaired, management evaluates the estimated
recoverable amount of these available-for-sale investments based on
the fair value less cost to sell, which was determined with reference
to investees’ net asset value. As at 31 March 2011, the carrying
amount of available-for-sale investments is HK$125,529,000 (2010:
HK$187,868,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 March 2011, the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables is HK$417,125,000 (2010: HK$668,786,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
borrowings disclosed in notes 29, 30 and 31, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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6. 0O0OO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
oooooo Categories of financial instruments
ooo ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooono Financial assets
ooooooan Loans and receivables
0o0ooooo - Long term receivables 130,718 62,151 - -
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- Trade and other

receivables 417,125 668,786 11,100 5,579
- Amounts due from
subsidiaries - - 158,284 167,061

- Bank balances,
deposits and cash 474,409 404,537 51,693 58,353
Available-for-sale
investments 125,529 187,868 - -

1,147,781 1,323,342 221,077 230,993

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
- Creditors and other

payables 281,364 275,003 417 9,679

- Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 20,369 19,024

- Bank loans and
import loans 733,080 1,130,620 324,211 309,354
- Borrowings 525,703 222,942 150,833 165,044

1,540,147 1,628,565 495,830 503,101

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's and the Company’s financial instruments include long term
receivables, trade and other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank balances, deposits and cash, available-for-sale investments,
creditors and other payables, amounts due to subsidiaries, bank loans
and import loans and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The Group’s and the
Company'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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6. D00 Onoo 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
0000000000 oo Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
oooo Market risk
ooog Currency risk
00000000000 00oOoOooooon The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
00000000000 O0OOO0OoOooO monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31 March 2011 and 2010 are
as follows:
oo oo
Assets Liabilities
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
oog Australian dollars 270,262 432,222 14,514 941
oog United States dollars 325,603 259,990 140,485 178,270
oo Japanese Yen 1,769 2,791 917 716
ooo Renminbi 244,162 203,859 193,285 196,326
oo Sterling pound 20,836 21,773 14,100 12,134
oo Euro 37,315 59,769 28,697 24,192

899,947 980,404 391,998 412,579

00000000000 0DOo0oDoOoOoooOg Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible by

00000000000 0DOo0oDoOoOoooOg matching assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination. The

OooooOooooooo management keeps on monitoring foreign exchange exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

O000oOoCOoOooOOoooooo The Company'’s exposure to the currency risk is insignificant.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2010: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies except for Australian
dollars which the Group uses a 10% (2010: 10%) sensitivity rate. The
analysis excluded the fluctuation between United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars because Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United
States dollars. The rates mentioned above are the sensitivity rates used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% or 10%
change in foreign currency rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for
a 5% or 10% strengthening of the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant currency and a negative number
below indicates as a decrease in profit for the year and vice versa. For
a 5% or 10% weakening of the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite effect on the results.

ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$000
oo Australian dollars (25,575) (43,128)
oo Japanese Yen (43) (104)
oog Renminbi (2,544) (377)
oo Sterling pound (337) (482)
00 Euro (431) (1,779)
oooo Interest rate risk

ooooO0oooO0ooOO0oO0ooOO0oDOOooDOOoo0OO
Co00DoOoOO01e00CO0OOCOOO200
26000000000 O0OONOOO27C0 0
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0031 oooooooooo
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The Group and the Company are primarily exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to its variable-rate amounts due from subsidiaries
(see note 16) and loan receivables (see note 20 and 26), bank balances
at prevailing market deposit rates (see note 27), variable-rate bank
loans and import loans (see note 30) and borrowings (see note 31).

The Group and the Company will enter into interest rate swaps to
mitigate part of the exposure to interest rate risk, if necessary. In
addition, the management will monitor the situation and consider
further hedging such exposure should the need arise.
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o0obooo Market risk (continued)

0000000 Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), Singapore Interbank Offered Rate (“SIBOR"),
Australian bank bill swap rate or Prime Rate arising from the Group's
and the Company'’s bank borrowings and loan receivables.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate amounts due from
subsidiaries, loan receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings, as
disclosed in notes 16, 20, 26, 27, 30 and 31. The analysis is prepared
assuming financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase
or decrease, except for bank balance which the Group uses a 10 basis
points, is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

For all interest-bearing financial instruments, if interest rates had been
50 basis points, except for bank balance which uses a 10 basis points,
(2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$5,332,000 (2010: HK$6,878,000) and the Company’s profit for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$2,156,000 (2010: HK$3,160,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rates on its loan receivables and variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment in
unlisted equity securities. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks and the
Group has a team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s available-for-sale

investments are not sensitive to price changes, hence no sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
and the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the Group and the
Company is arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the statement of financial position; and

- the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group and the Company as disclosed in
note 41.

The management considers that the Group and the Company have
adequate credit control for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group and the
Company review the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other receivables, long term receivables and shareholder’s loan to
investees at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the
Group and the Company manage the credit risk of trade receivables
and shareholder’s loan to investees by ongoing evaluation of the
counterparties’ financial position and requesting counterparties to
provide other forms of security, if consider as necessary. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s and the
Company'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agents.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to the credit risk in
respect of guarantees given to banks relating to banking facilities
utilised by associates (see note 41). The management periodically
reviews financial position of the associates and considers that the
associates are of strong financial strength and the Group and the
Company have adequate monitoring procedures to reduce the credit
risk.

The Group and the Company do not have any significant concentration
of credit risk over trade receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers and spread across diverse industries.

The Group has concentration of credit risk over other receivables
and long term receivables with 36.1% (2010: 58.5%) of total other
receivables in a single counterparty and long term receivables
concentrated in three counterparties. The management has reviewed
the financial ability of the counterparties regularly to ensure
the counterparties have sufficient financial liquidity to repay the
receivables. The Company does not have any significant concentration
of credit risk over the remaining other receivables.
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6. 000ooo 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)
OO0O0OO0O0OO0OO0OO0O0ooo Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Oo0o0booo Credit risk (continued)
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The Company has concentration of credit risk over receivables from
subsidiaries with 45% and 32% (2010: 44% and 40%) of total amounts
due from subsidiaries concentrated in two counter-parties respectively.
The management considers that there is no significant credit risk due to
the sound financial positions of subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company finance their operations by using a
combination of borrowings and equity. Adequate lines of credit are
maintained to ensure necessary liquidity is available when required.
The management monitors the liquidity position of the Group and the
Company on a periodical basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liguid funds to meet all obligations. With reference to the existing
unutilised facilities and newly obtained facilities up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue and
after taking into account of any possible disposal of investments and
re-financing arrangements, the directors of the Company consider the
source of liquidity and capital for the daily operation are sufficient.

The Company has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$158,634,000 as at 31 March 2011. The directors consider the
Company has sufficient internally generated funds and available
facilities to meet the Company’s financial obligations.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s contractual
maturity for its non-financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

ooo
THE GROUP
oooo
0oo
ooo oooo
oooooo ooo ooo 0OOoOoo  Carrying amount
Weighted ooo ooo Total at the end of
average On demand Within 2 undiscounted the reporting
interest rate  or within 1 year to 5 years cash flows period
ooo ooo ooo 0oo
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
godooooooooo As at 31 March 2011
oooooooooo Creditors and other payables - 281,364 - 281,364 281,364
000D00000MOO0ooO  Bank loans and import loans
(variable rates) 3.27 758,508 - 758,508 733,080
omooooo Borrowings (variable rates) 3.39 - 547,791 547,791 525,703
oooooon Obligations under finance
leases 2.36 1,488 1,180 2,668 2,602
ooo Letter of credit - 56,331 - 56,331 -
ooooomoon Financial guarantee contracts
(note) - 35,409 - 35,409 -
1,133,100 548,971 1,682,071 1,542,749
gooooooooboboo As at 31 March 2010
ooooooooon Creditors and other payables - 275,003 - 275,003 275,003
000D00000mOooooo  Bank loans and import loans
(variable rates) 1.97 1,142,231 - 1,142,231 1,130,620
omoocooo Borrowings (variable rates) 1.85 - 226,417 226,417 222,942
onoooo Obligations under finance
leases 2.09 1,693 1,134 2,827 2,769
goooomooo Financial guarantee contracts
(note) - 261,067 - 261,067 -
1,679,994 227,551 1,907,545 1,631,334

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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6. 000ooo

oo0o0o0o0ooo00ooo

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

oooooisoo Liquidity risk (continued)
ooo
THE COMPANY
0ooo
ooo
ooo oooo
oooooo ooo ooo 0OOoO0o  Carrying amount
Weighted ooo 0oo Total at the end of
average On demand Within 2 undiscounted the reporting
interest rate  or within 1 year to 5 years cash flows period
ooo ooo ooo ooo
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
goooooboooooo As at 31 March 2011
gooooooooo Creditors and other payables - 417 - 417 417
goooooo Amounts due to subsidiaries - 8,648 11,721 20,369 20,369
ooomooooo Bank loans (variable rates) 2.24 332,915 - 332,915 324,211
0Mooooo Borrowings (variable rates) 2.88 - 154,274 154,274 150,833
oooooo Obligation under finance leases 1.34 312 - 312 311
342,292 165,995 508,287 496,141
0oo00o00DOoDoDoon As at 31 March 2010
ooooooooon Creditors and other payables = 9,679 - 9,679 9,679
gooooon Amounts due to subsidiaries - 7,303 11,721 19,024 19,024
ooomoooon Bank loans (variable rates) 1.45 314,421 - 314,421 309,354
0mooooo Borrowings (variable rates) 1.59 - 166,839 166,839 165,044
ooooon Obligation under finance leases 1.40 728 312 1,040 1,031
opooomooon Financial guarantee contracts
(note) - 135,066 - 135,066 -
467,197 178,872 646,069 504,132

0000000000000 0O0O000O0OO0O0O000OO0
ooo00ooO0OO000O0OO0000O0OO0O0O00O0O00
O00o000oO0O000OO0OO000D0OOO0OO0O0O0O0O0O0
ooo00oo0oO0O000O0O000O0OO00O0D0O0O0O0
oo0oo0oOoOOoO0oO0OOOO0OO0ODOOODOCOOOO
O0oo0000000000000

00000000000 0000000O0O0O0O0O000A0
0000000000000O00O0O0000
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Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group and the Company could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group and the Company consider that it is more likely that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty which suffers credit
losses on the financial receivables and claims under the guarantee.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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6. 000 uoo 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using the prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the executive directors, who are the chief operating decision maker
("“CODM"), assess profit or loss of these operating divisions using
a measure of operating profit arrived at after excluding: interest
income, dividend income, rental income, change in fair value of
investment properties, impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
investments, finance costs, net gain on disposal/deemed partial disposal
of subsidiaries, discount on deemed acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary, net loss on deemed partial disposal/disposal of associates,
discount on acquisition of additional interest in an associate, discount
on acquisition of a jointly controlled entity, unallocated expenses and
unallocated other income.

The three main operating divisions are:

Electronics — development, manufacture and distribution of electronics
and acoustic products, automotive wire harness and other businesses
through investments in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly controlled

entity.

Batteries — development, manufacture and distribution of batteries and
battery related products through the investment in a listed associate.

Other investments — holding of other investments which are mainly
engaged in selling and distribution business.

The Group’s turnover represents sales of electronics and acoustics,
automotive wire harness and other products.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by these

7. 000 ooo
goo0oo0oooooooboooooa
operating segments:

ooooooooooooooon Year ended 31 March 2011

oooao
oo oo Other oo
Electronics Batteries investments Total
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo TURNOVER
ooono External sales 1,957,516 - - 1,957,516
oo RESULTS
oooag Segment results 215,475 55,706 5,120 276,301
0oooooooon Interest income and dividend
income 12,433
ooono Rental income 532
00o0o0ooooooon Impairment loss recognised
on available-for-sale
investments (82,272)
gooooooooo Change in fair value of
investment properties (3,611)
oooo Finance costs (44,909)

00000000000000000 Net loss on deemed partial
disposal/disposal of

associates (5,069)

82

goooooo Unallocated expenses (39,151)
goooooooo Unallocated other income 24,079
goooo Profit before taxation 138,333

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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7. 000 ooo 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
oooooooooooonnonn Year ended 31 March 2010

ooon
oo oo Other oo
Electronics Batteries investments Total
ooo ooo oon ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo TURNOVER
oooo External sales 1,457,502 - - 1,457,502
oo RESULTS
ogooo Segment results 127,736 98,001 (254) 225,483
00o0oooooo Interest income and dividend
income 34,686
oooo Rental income 3,493
0000o0o0ooooon Impairment loss recognised
on available-for-sale
investments (134,367)
oooo Finance costs (43,963)
000000000000000 Net gain on disposal/deemed
oooooooo partial disposal of
subsidiaries 79
0000000000000 Net loss on deemed partial
oooo disposal/disposal of
associates (9,576)
0000000000000 Discount on acquisition of a
jointly controlled entity 53,711
00000000000000000 Discount on deemed
acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary 103,409
000000000000000 Discount on acquisition of
additional interest in an
associate 4,841
goooooo Unallocated expenses (78,365)
00o0oooooo Unallocated other income 30,982
goooo Profit before taxation 190,413

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the CODM reviews
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as a
whole to assess the performance or allocate resources.

oboooOoocoooOobOOooOoobOooooo
oooooooCcOoooooooooooao
ooboooooOoooboooooo
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7. 000 ooo
oooo

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other information

oooo oo

oo 0og Other Consoli-
Electronics Batteries investments dated
ooo ooo ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000

DOO000OOOOOOCoOOoOoCooO

pOO0O0OooOOoOoooboOoaO

ooooo
oooooooa

Year ended 31 March 2011

Amounts included in measure
of segment profit or loss

Depreciation and amortisation 38,741 - 4,296 43,037
Share of results of

associates 109,075 55,706 - 164,781

oooo oo

oo oo Other Consoli-

Electronics Batteries investments dated

ooo ooo ooo ooo

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
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Year ended 31 March 2010

Amounts included in
measure of segment
profit or loss

Depreciation and amortisation 37,023 - 5,463 42,486
Share of results of
associates 87,836 98,001 (1,336) 184,501

Geographical information

The Group’s manufacturing and marketing functions are carried out
in The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”), Hong Kong (country of
domicile) and certain other Asia-Pacific, Middle East, European and
American countries.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group'’s sales from
external customers based on location of customers and information
about its non-current assets other than available-for-sale investments
and long term receivables by geographical locations of assets:

ooooooo
ooo
ooo

oooooo

oo

oo

oooooo

oo
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ooo ooooo
Turnover Non-current assets

2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

The PRC
- Hong Kong 103,528 83,424 289,674 294,677
- Mainland China 630,190 334,765 1,248,227 1,205,781
Other Asian countries 115,017 101,442 468,123 449,159
Europe 480,411 446,126 109,958 113,771
Americas 603,281 465,474 28,786 39,395
Australia & New Zealand 15,676 20,795 76,549 -
Others 9,413 5,476 - -

1,957,516 1,457,502 2,221,317 2,102,783
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information (continued)

The geographical information of the Group's revenue from external

customers by individual significant countries in other Asian countries,

Europe, Americas and others is not available as management considers

the cost to develop would be excessive. The turnover in Europe and

Americas mainly represents revenue derived from customers located in
the United Kingdom and the United States respectively and the non-
current assets classified as “Other Asian countries” mainly represents

Taiwan.

oooooo Revenue by major products
0000000000000 0O0O0n The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by its major
products:
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$°000
gooCcoooo Electronics and acoustics products 1,412,627 1,189,729
oooooo Automotive wire harness products 544,889 254,047
oo Others - 13,726
1,957,516 1,457,502
oooooo Information about major customers

00000000000 O00000010%0
oooood

The following is an analysis of revenues from customers contributing

over 10% of the total sales of the Group in corresponding years:

2011 2010
ooo ooo

HK$’000 HK$'000

OOA Customer A 284,218’ 236,855'

OoB Customer B 249,756’ =

1 00000000
2 [00000000000O000C0O0000010%0

1 Revenue from Electronics segment.

2 The revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total sales of the Group in 2010.

8. DOOO FINANCE COSTS

2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000

doo00o0oooooOooooooooo Interest on bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years 44,866 43,932

oooOooooooo Interest on obligations under finance

leases 43 31
ooooo Total borrowing costs 44,909 43,963

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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9. DODOOO 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
doooDooOooooooo Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging:
0oomoo1o0 Directors’ emoluments (see note 10) 28,130 26,122
goooooo Share option expense for staff 3,878 -
goooooobooo Other staff salaries, allowances and welfare 387,364 336,448
0oooooooo Total employee benefits expenses 419,372 362,570
DoooooOooooo Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
-00a0a - owned assets 37,924 34,732
-00000a0a - assets under finance leases 931 589
38,855 35,321
00000 Oo0o0oooooOoOo Amortisation of technical know-how
(included in administrative expenses) - 2,760
DO00DMooooooooo Amortisation of trademarks (included in
administrative expenses) 4,182 4,183
goooo Auditor’s remuneration
ooo Current year 4,828 4,998
0moomoooo (Over) underprovision in prior years (175) 837
0ooooooooo Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 1,433,754 1,047,850
oooooooooog Impairment loss recognised on long term
receivables 3,646 -
00000000 ooooooooOo Impairment loss recognised on technical
know-how (included in other expenses) 104 98
00oo0oooooooo Impairment loss recognised on interests in
associates - 7,952
ooooooooon Loss on deregistration of associates 24 -
0oooooooo Minimum lease payments made in respect of
oooo Rental premises 34,689 30,453
oo Others 5,489 5,255
ooooo Net exchange loss 5,496 -
oooooooo Release of prepaid lease payment - 222
00000@MOooooooooono Research expenditure incurred
(included in cost of sales) 51,625 50,643
0000000 Oo00000oooooOOn Share of tax of associates (included in share
of results of associates) 33,735 37,928
goooo and after crediting:
dooooooooooo Dividend income from unlisted
equity investments 3,000 7,698
0000000000000 Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 7,546 18,035
goooooooo* Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries* 859 21,045
Oooooooooooo Interest earned on bank deposits and
balances 5,689 26,966
dooooooooog Interest income from long term receivables 3,744 -
Ooooooooooo Interest income from associates - 22
ooooo Net exchange gain - 4,326
O000000000000000000000 Rental income from investment properties,
00O00OOoOe00000 less direct expenses from investment
0000000295000000 properties that generated rental income
during the year of HK$6,000
(2010: HK$295,000) 526 3,198
* [QO00D000000000O00O0O0O0O00O0D0O00O0 *  The gain for prior year arose from release of translation reserve upon deregistration

0oooOoOoO0OoOoOooooo of the subsidiaries in the year ended 31 March 2010.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments
Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2010: thirteen)

directors are as follows:

2011

oooo
Other emoluments
oooo oooao
ooo oooo oooao
oooo Performance Retirement ooooo
oo Salaries and related incentive benefits scheme Share option oo
Fees other benefits payments contribution expense Total
ooo ooo ooo ood ooag ooo
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$'000
oooo
(Note)
ooo Victor LO Chung Wing 10 4,606 5,157 408 218 10,399
goo Andrew NG Sung On 10 2,434 2,400 225 218 5,287
ooo Kevin LO Chung Ping 10 985 110 99 145 1,349
ooo Paul LO Chung Wai 10 500 - 50 145 705
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 3,294 1,850 211 203 5,568
goo Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 - - - 203 213
ooo Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,410 315 189 203 3,127
goo CHAU Kwok Wai 150 - - - 87 237
goo Raymond WONG Wai Kan 150 - - - 87 237
goo Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 150 - - - 87 237
goo LUl Ming Wah 180 - - - 87 267
goo Frank CHAN Chi Chung 180 - - - 87 267
ooo CHAN Kei Biu 150 - - - 87 237
1,030 14,229 9,832 1,182 1,857 28,130

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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10.0 000000000 ooo 10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)
00000000 Ooao Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments (continued)
O0noo Directors (continued)
2010
oooao
Other emoluments
oooo oooo
ooo oooao oooo
oooo Performance Retirement ooooo
oo Salariesand related incentive  benefits scheme Share option oo
Fees other benefits payments contribution expense Total
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oooo
(Note)
ooag Victor LO Chung Wing 10 4,063 2,647 350 - 7,070
ooo Andrew NG Sung On 10 3,682 2,500 337 = 6,529
ooag Kevin LO Chung Ping 10 887 110 88 - 1,095
ooag Paul LO Chung Wai 10 450 - 45 - 505
ooo LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 2,915 2,450 177 = 5,552
ooag Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 - - - - 10
ooag Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,189 504 167 - 2,870
ooo CHAU Kwok Wai 85 843 1,023 = = 1,951
ooag Raymond WONG Wai Kan 100 = - - - 100
ooag Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 100 - - - - 100
ooag LUl Ming Wah 120 = - - - 120
ooag Frank CHAN Chi Chung 120 = - - - 120
ooo CHAN Kei Biu 100 = = = = 100
695 15,029 9,234 1,164 = 26,122
000 000000000000 O0OO0OO0O0O0OO0OO0OO0 Note: The performance related incentive payments were determined with reference to
OOo0oODO00O0OOoOoOooOooon the operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics

for both years.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments (continued)
Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included
three (2010: three) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2010: two) highest paid employee of the Group, not being a director of
the Company, are as follows:

2011 2010

ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$'000

goooooo Salaries and other benefits 5,274 4,784
oooao Performance related incentive payments 2,324 2,816
gooooooo Retirement benefit scheme contributions 428 377
8,026 7,977

oooooooooo

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

gooo
No. of employees
2011 2010
2,500,0010 O O 3,000,00001 [ HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1
3,000,0010 O O 3,500,00001 [ HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 -
4,500,0010 O O 5,000,00000 O HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1

ooDooOOooO0o0ooOOoDOOoboOoooDoOooDoooo
ooDoDOOooOOoocOoomoooooboooOmao

goboo0oo0o0o@OoooOooOooboooDooon
oobooOOooO0oOooOOoDOO0oboOoooDoOooDoooo
oooooooo

During the year ended 31 March 2011, no emoluments (2010: nil)
was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

11. 00 11. TAXATION
2011 2010
oon ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo The charge comprises:
gooooooooo The Company and its subsidiaries:
coooo Hong Kong Profits Tax
ooooog — Charge for the year 7,770 2,879
oooooooooo Taxation in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong
oooooo - Charge for the year 18,677 12,981
ooooooood — Overprovision in previous years (7,093) (157)
11,584 12,824
19,354 15,703
O0000MO0oooOo320 Deferred taxation charge (credit)
(note 32)
ooo Current year 5,468 (6,780)
24,822 8,923

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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11.

12.

Oooo 11. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
000000000000 O0D0DOOOOOOO Taxation in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong is calculated at the rates
ooo prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
ooooooooo A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooQod Profit before taxation 138,333 190,413
0000000 165%00000016.5%0 Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits
ooooa tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 22,825 31,418
ooooooooooo Tax effect of share of results
of associates (27,189) (30,443)
0000000OooDooon Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 23,712 40,970
ooooooooo Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes (4,444) (39,890)
000o00O0DOoOooog Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,867 2,860
00000000000 OO0O0O Tax effect of deductible temporary difference
not recognised 707 1,162
000000DO000O00O0OO Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (169) (12)
0000000OooDooon Effect of different tax rates
in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong 9,551 9,095
0000Do00OoDooOOooOooo Withholding tax on distributed and
undistributed profit 5,049 3,130
ooooooon Overprovision in previous years (7,093) (157)
000000DOoOO0ooon Release of deferred tax liability resulting from
disposal of investment properties - (9,636)
oo Others 6 426
ooooo Taxation charge for the year 24,822 8,923
od 12. DIVIDENDS
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000

ooboooobooooooo

00000O0oOoOoooooooosso0

oooOoooboooobooooooot.s000

00000O0OOoOoOOooooooo2500

CooCocoOOoOooOOoOoOoOoOoOoOoOO3.0000

COo0oOoO0ooopooooCocOoo3oemooo
00003500 O00o00oooooooog
oboooOO0oooOooOooOooOooobOOooDOooOO
o0oo0OO0oOoO00oDOoooOOooOss0mMmon
00006500000 ONOA43,158,0000 O
000000043,943,0000 0 M
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Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2010 Final dividend - 3.5 HK cents
(2010: 2009 Final dividend:
1.5 HK cents) per share 27,464 8,239
2011 Interim dividend — 2.5
HK cents (2010: 2010 Interim
dividend: 3.0 HK cent) per share 19,617 16,479

47,081 24,718

A final dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2010: 3.5 HK cents) per share has
been proposed by the directors and it is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. This dividend
has been recognised in the dividend reserve of the Company. On the
basis of 5.5 HK cents (2010: 6.5 HK cents) per share for 2011, total
dividends amounts to HK$43,158,000 (2010: HK$43,943,000).
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13.0000 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
O000OO00O0O000O00D0OO0D0OOOO0OOO0 The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
oooooooono to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
2011 2010
oon ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
oo Earnings
dooDoDoOoOooooooog Profit for the year attributable to owners
00D00O0DDOoOon of the Company and the earnings for the
purpose of basic earnings per share 85,084 128,241
000O0D0D00O0OD00OOO0O0OO0OODOOOOOoog Effect of dilutive potential shares on share
oDo0ooooo of results of subsidiaries and associates
based on the dilution of their earnings
per share (80) -
dooooooooog Earnings for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 85,004 128,241
2011 2010
o] O
‘000 ‘000
ooog Number of shares
00000000D0oO000ooOooooOo Weighted average number of shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share 784,693 624,022
0000000000 0DOoDOoDOooooooOoO The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
0000000000 0DOoDOoDOooooooOoO 31 March 2011 has not assumed the exercise of the Company’s share
0000000000 0DOoDOoDOooooooOoO options because the exercise prices of the share options were higher
0000000000 0DOoDOoDOooooooOoO than the average market prices of those shares for the year ended 31
ooooo March 2011.
0000000000 0DOoDOoDOooooooOoO The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
O000000GPOOOOODOOOOODOOO March 2010 did not assume the exercise of the GP Ind’s and GPBI’s share
O000000000000000D00O0GPO options because the exercise prices of the GP Ind’s and GPBI's share
0000000000000 0D0O00000O0 options were higher than the average market prices for the respective
GPOOOOODODODODOODOOOOO shares for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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14.0000 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ooo ooo

THE THE

GROUP COMPANY

ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$°000

oono FAIR VALUE

oooooooooo At 1 April 2009 103,240 125,513
oo Disposals (103,000) (125,513)
ooobooooooooo At 31 March 2010 240 -
oooo Currency realignment 6,487 -
oo Additions 72,491 -
oo Disposals (245) -
oooooo Change in fair value (3,611) -
0oOoooO0o00o0000 At 31 March 2011 75,362 -

ooooooooooood

The carrying value of investment properties shown above situated on:

oon
THE GROUP
2011 2010
oon ooo
HK$'000 HK$’'000
ooooooo Land in Hong Kong:
oooo Medium-term lease - 240
ooooooooo Land outside Hong Kong:
oooo Freehold 75,362 -
75,362 240

O000O00000009200000000000
68,323,0000 0 10 00 OO OQO TarwaydD O O
CO0OmMmOoOoO0O26ecmm

ooobooooooboboboooooboboooo
boboooboboooboobooboobo
0000000000000 DDOOO Lindsay
Wapper & Associates Valuation Services [
0000000 Lindsay Wapper & Associates
Valuation ServicesDOOOOOOOOO0OOODO
ooobooooooboboboooooboboooo
obooboooooooooboobooboon

oooooocoOobOobOoocOooboooooo
dooooOoobOOooobOoCcooooOoOooao
oooooocboOooOoOooOoooboooooo
doboooobOoooboooooocooon
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During the year, the Group received investment properties with value
of approximately AUD9,200,000 (equivalent to HK$68,323,000) as part
of the settlement for the Tarway Loan (See note 26(c)).

The fair values of investment properties as at the date of acquisition
during the current year and 31 March 2011 were valued by Jones
Lang LaSalle and Lindsay Wapper & Associates Valuation Services,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. Jones Lang LaSalle and Lindsay Wapper & Associates Valuation
Services have appropriate qualifications and experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in similar locations and conditions.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2010
were determined by the directors. No valuation has been performed by
independent qualified professional valuers. The valuation performed
by the directors was arrived at by reference to recent market prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.
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15. 00000000 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Oooo 00000 oo
ooooo oo oooo 0oooo 00000
Freehold Leasehold Leasehold ~ Machinery Moulds
land and land and improve- and and oo oo
buildings buildings ments  equipment tools Others Total
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oooo
(note)
goo THE GROUP
goooo COST OR VALUATION
0o00oCooooo At 1 April 2009 14,511 128,321 51,758 178,255 53,513 98,325 524,683
oooo Currency realignment 864 210 724 (518) 1,576 1,553 4,409
oo0ooooooo Acquisition of a jointly controlled
000390 entity (note 39) = 25,871 = 14,340 3,728 473 44,412
gooooooo Disposal of a subsidiary - - (2,243) (4,145) (6,745) (2,159) (15,292)
oo Additions - - 5,752 11,492 4,542 2,032 23,818
ooooo Disposals/write-off - (9,369) (4,021) (5,482) (1,663) (3,483)  (24,018)
00000000oOooO  At31 March 2010 15,375 145,033 51,970 193,942 54,951 96,741 558,012
gooo Currency realignment 2,204 12,845 2,957 26,685 11,107 6,017 61,815
oo Additions - - 5,110 13,673 5,867 5,243 29,893
ooooo Disposals/write-off - - (2,290) (1,054) (573) (23,054) (26,971)
000000000000  At31 March 2011 17,579 157,878 57,747 233,246 71,352 84,947 622,749
ooo Comprising:
oo At cost 17,579 112,795 57,741 233,246 71,352 84,947 577,666
gooooooo At valuation - 1994 - 45,083 - - - - 45,083
17,579 157,878 57,747 233,246 71,352 84,947 622,749
oo DEPRECIATION
oooooooooo At 1 April 2009 3,072 28,516 30,450 129,940 47,974 48,200 288,152
oooo Currency realignment 177 154 495 (209) 1,211 1,194 3,022
goooo Provided for the year 242 4,124 5,871 15,162 4,167 5,755 35,321
do0ooOoooCooo Eliminated on disposal of a
subsidiary - - (2,243) (4,145) (6,745) (2,159)  (15,292)
gooooooo Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (3,097) (4,021) (4,328) (1,023) (3,093)  (15,562)
000000000000 At 31 March 2010 3,491 29,697 30,552 136,420 45,584 49,897 295,641
ooon Currency realignment 478 10,509 2,675 26,630 10,688 5,516 56,496
ooooo Provided for the year 237 4,977 5,774 15,735 4,822 7,310 38,855
oooooooo Eliminated on disposals/write-off - - (1,686) (901) (573)  (14,275)  (17,435)
000000000000 At 31 March 2011 4,206 45,183 37,315 177,884 60,521 48,448 373,557
aoo CARRYING VALUES
000000000000  At31 March 2011 13,373 112,695 20,432 55,362 10,831 36,499 249,192
000000000000  At31 March 2010 11,884 115,336 21,418 57,522 9,367 46,844 262,371
ooo bODoODODOoOOOOOOOO0O0O0O00O0O0 Note:  Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying

27,837,0000 (0 O 000 0O0O41,759,0000 O [
8,662,0000 [0 0 00O 0O 0O5,085,0000 0 M

values of HK$27,837,000 (2010: HK$41,759,000) and HK$8,662,000 (2010:
HK$5,085,000), respectively.
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15. 0000000 Oooo 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTINUED)

0oooooo oooooo ooooo
Leasehold land Leasehold  Machinery and oo oo
and buildings  improvements equipment Others Total
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo THE COMPANY
oo COST
gooooooooo At 1 April 2009 6,669 10,320 5,071 49,402 71,462
oo Additions - - 33 - 33
oo Disposals (6,669) (1,559) (1,611) (552) (10,391)
oooooooooocod At 31 March 2010 - 8,761 3,493 48,850 61,104
oo Additions - - 60 2,696 2,756
od Disposals - (1,894) - (15,996) (17,890)
Oo0o0O00o0oOOoOoOooOO0 At 31 March 2011 = 6,867 3,553 35,550 45,970
oo DEPRECIATION
oooooooooon At 1 April 2009 267 4,286 4,124 21,798 30,475
ooooo Provided for the year 89 734 261 4,157 5,241
ooooo Eliminated on disposals (356) (948) (1,418) (476) (3,198)
gooooooooooo At 31 March 2010 - 4,072 2,967 25,479 32,518
ooooo Provided for the year - 1,11 225 4,491 5,827
ooooo Eliminated on disposals - (1,439) - (8,173) (9,612)
goooooooooob At 31 March 2011 - 3,744 3,192 21,797 28,733
ooad CARRYING VALUES
OoDo0O00o0oOoOoOooO At 31 March 2011 = 3,123 361 13,753 17,237
oooooooooooo At 31 March 2010 - 4,689 526 23,371 28,586
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooooOoOooooo The property interests
shown above comprise:
ooooooooo Freehold properties
oooo held outside Hong Kong 13,373 11,884
oooooOoOoo Leasehold land and buildings:
ood Held in Hong Kong,
oooo Medium-term leases 1,208 1,266
ooooog Held outside Hong Kong,
oooo Long-term leases 8,211 8,472
oooo Medium-term leases 103,276 105,598
126,068 127,220

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmmueny

00000 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 00000000 COCOOODOO

15. 0000000 ooo 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTiNUED)
ooo ono
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ono ooo oon ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
goooooOooooo Carrying values of property,
ooooooo plant and equipment held
under finance leases:
oooooo Leasehold improvements 1,590 2,321 1,569 1,771
ooooo Machinery and equipment 953 1,046 - -
2,543 3,367 1,569 1,771

16.

obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
ooboooooooooo

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method or the reducing balance method, at the following
rates per annum:

gooo Straight-line method:
goooooo 4%00000000 Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the remaining period of
0moooog respective leases where shorter
cooocoo 2%03.2% Freehold buildings 2% to 3.2%
cooocoo 10%0000000000 Leasehold improvements 10% or over the remaining period
ooooog of respective leases where shorter
cooocoo Reducing balance method:
goooo 10% O 33',% Machinery and equipment 10% to 33';%
ooooo 20% [0 50% Moulds and tools 20% to 50%
ocmooo Others (representing mainly
oooooo furniture, fixtures, equipment
ooooog 10% O 33',% and motor vehicles) 10% to 33';%
ogooooo 16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
ooo
THE COMPANY
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oooooooo Listed shares, at cost 1,220,110 1,216,533
ooooooooo Unlisted shares, at cost 87,886 88,886
1,307,996 1,305,419
oooooooooo Amounts due from subsidiaries — non-current 47,862 49,862
ooooooooo Amounts due from subsidiaries — current
ooooooooo (net of impairment loss) 110,422 117,199
oooooooooo Amounts due to subsidiaries — current 8,648 7,303
o0o0ooOoooooooo Amount due to a subsidiary — non-current 11,721 11,721
000O0D0OoOoOoOoDOoOoo Market values of listed shares at 31 March 1,393,913 1,148,336

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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16. 00000 oo 16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

goooOooOoooOOoDOOoooooboooboooo
018,416,000 OO O O O O O O 33,244,000
0MO00001%02% 00000 01%02%0
goooOoocoooOooOOooOoooboooboooo
goooooooooobooooooo

goooOoocoooOooOOooOoooboooboooo
goooOoocoooOooOOooOoooboooboooo
gooo

gooooooooooDooOoODbePOOOO
goooooooooooooooooooo

goo0ooO0oDOOoOoO0oOooOoDOOoOooooaeePO
O0Gerard00 00000 ODODODOOOODODO
dOo000o000000mooaoaoes375,000
oMmooooooooooooooooooo
0000 GerardDd O O O O 55,681,4430 GPO
O00000Tarwayd D 00000 26(c)M O
ooo0ooocooooost4t1500000000
gooooooooooboooooo

ooooooooOoooooooooooao
00000000 38,1050000 M O0GPOO O
00000000000 14,383,0000 GPO OO
ooo0O0oz2m9%%0000 0000000000
ooooOooOoooOOooOooOoooooboooo
ooooOooOoooOOooOooOoooooboooo
O00O0OO0oO0oont03,409,000000

gooooOoooooOOooOOooOoooooDoooo
gooooOoooooOOooOOooOoooooDoooo
gooooOoooooOOooOOooOoooooDoooo
O0O0000O0000O00COOd 16,256,000
OO00O0O000oo30,358,0000000000
ooooooDoo0oOoOoooooooooo
OO0o0O00Oo953140000 00000000
215,358,00000 O [T]

ooo0ooO0ooOoooDOoOoonaed
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The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable
on demand. Other than an amount of HK$18,416,000 (2010:
HK$33,244,000) which bears fixed interest ranging from 1% to 2%
(2010: 1% to 2%) per annum, the remaining balance is interest free. In
the opinion of the directors, the non-current portion is not repayable
within the next twelve months.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. The
non-current portion is not repayable within the next twelve months.
The current portion is repayable on demand.

The listed shares represent the investment in GP Ind which is
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and its shares are listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, GP Ind entered into a selective
capital reduction agreement with the Gerard Family (as defined in note
26(c)) (“SCR"), to cancel 55,681,443 GP Ind shares held by the Gerard
Family at a consideration of HK$99,375,000 (determined based on the
share price at the date of SCR) by offsetting the Tarway loan (as defined
in note 26(c)). The SCR had resulted in discount on deemed acquisition
of additional interest in a subsidiary of approximately HK$81,415,000.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company further
acquired 14,383,000 GP Ind shares at a consideration of HK$38,105,000
(determined based on the share price of GP Ind) and resulted in discount
on acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary of approximately
HK$21,994,000. Together with the effect of the SCR and the further
acquisition of shares by the Group during the year, total discount on
deemed acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary amounted to
HK$103,409,000.

Impairment losses for investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries
were recognised based on the recoverable amounts which were
determined by the estimated discounted net cash flows from these
subsidiaries. During the year ended 31 March 2011, an impairment loss
of HK$16,256,000 (2010: HK$30,358,000) was recognised for amount
due from a subsidiary. As at 31 March 2011, accumulated impairment
losses on amounts due from subsidiaries were HK$95,314,000 (2010:
HK$215,358,000).

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46.
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00000 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 00000000 COCOOODOO

17. 00000000 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
oooooooao Cost of investments in associates
ood Listed 790,401 790,401
ooo Unlisted 230,734 270,322
000000000 OoOoOoOooO Share of post-acquisition profit
oooood and other comprehensive income,
net of dividends received 778,459 681,830
1,799,594 1,742,553
oooooo Amounts due from associates 4,594 4,594
1,804,188 1,747,147
000000oooOooooon Market values of listed shares at 31 March 675,064 719,262

ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oooooon

ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
ooooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
O0O000SP@ 00000 OOSPGOO OO
ooOooMmooOooooooOoooo
00000045,289,0000 00O 7,941,0000 O O
000000000 O0OOCOOO0O0OO0OO0sSPGO
oboDooOoooooOoDOooOooobOooDooOn
ooooooDoooooooooooooao
COooO00OO0O0oOoOos,GOOOOOCOOOOO
4,215,0000 0 O 251,0000 0 000

oboDooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oboDooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
oooDoooOoOOo0OnooOoooooomao
0Moo0OnooOoooooboooooon
0000000173,186,0000 O O 47,705,000
oboDooOoooooOoDOooOooobOoDooOo
oo0o0OOooOOoooooboooooooo
oo0o0oooOooDOOoOooOoOLw.boOOoOoOO
oboDooOoooooOoDOooOoooboooDooOn
000000008,651,00000 000 354,000
oooood

The amounts due from associates are interest bearing at prevailing
market rate and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group would not demand for the repayment within the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the amounts are shown as non-current assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group disposed of its
interests in certain of its unlisted associates, which mainly represented
the disposals of its interests in SPG Industry (H.K.) Limited (“SPG")
and Dai-ichi Electronics (Shanghai) Co Ltd. (“Dai-ichi SH") at the
consideration of approximately HK$45,289,000 and approximately
HK$7,941,000 respectively. Both associates were disposed of to
an independent third party. SPG was principally engaged in the
manufacturing of high precision parts and components, tooling and
moulds. Dai-ichi SH was principally engaged in the manufacturing of
loudspeakers and electronics products. The Group recognised losses of
HK$4,215,000 and HK$251,000 upon the disposal of SPG and Dai-ichi SH
respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group disposed of its
interests in certain of its associates, which mainly represented the
disposals of its entire interests in Lighthouse Technologies Limited
(“Lighthouse”) and Furukawa GP Auto Parts (HK) Limited (“Furukawa")
at the consideration (net of transaction costs) of HK$173,186,000
and HK$47,705,000 respectively. Lighthouse was disposed of to Linkz
Industries Limited (“Linkz"”), another associate of the Group, while
Furukawa was disposed to an independent third party. Lighthouse was
principally engaged in the sales of LED products and Furukawa was
principally engaged in the distribution of wire products. The Group
recognised a gain of HK$8,651,000 and a loss of HK$354,000 upon
disposal of Lighthouse and Furukawa respectively.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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17. 0000000 Oooo

ooooooDoo0oOooooooooooao
ooooooDoo0oOooooooooooao
499500 00000001,1650000 0000
goooOooOoooOOoDOOoooooboooboooo
0047.23000037.720000000000
O000000000000018,429,0000 00

O00o0o0oo0ooooooaooer,508,0000 00

0000975080000 0

ooo0ooO0ooOooooDoooooazo
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2010, Linkz acquired an
additional 49.95% equity interest in Lighthouse from an independent
third party and Linkz issued 1,165,000 new shares as consideration
for the acquisition. As a result, the Group’s equity interest in Linkz
decreased from 47.23% to 37.72% and recognised a loss on deemed
partial disposal of an associate of approximately HK$18,429,000.

Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$97,508,000 (2010:
HK$97,508,000).

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 47.
The summarised financial information in respect of associates based on

their financial information for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the
relevant information in respect of the Group’s interest in associates are

as follows:

2011 2010
0ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$°000

gooo Financial position
ooo Total assets 9,897,983 9,118,059
ooo Total liabilities 4,636,274 4,259,860
ooooo Non-controlling interests 444,053 476,255
oooooOooo Group's share of net assets 1,702,086 1,645,045

gooo
ooo

oooo
oooOooooooo
oobooooooooooomooo

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

Results for the year

Turnover 11,765,552 10,075,577
Profit for the year 588,941 628,459
Group's share of results of associates 164,781 184,501
Group's share of other comprehensive

income (expense) of associates 27,444 (13,819)
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17. 0000000 ooo 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
O0000243,8080000 00000000
225,295 0000 0 MO0 00CO00COOODO
oOnooooooooooboobooooog
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
ooooopoDoo0oOooooooooooao
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
oobooOoooooOOooDOOooOooooobooo
0000000 0oOO0DOoOO00OO0O0O0O11.8%
oooooooNns»mooooooooog
obooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooboooo
ooooooooooo

0000000000000 0882,568,0000 O
O0O0000Os8s4,540,0000 0@ Oo00ooOg
oobooOooOoooOooDOOooOoooboooDooo
oobooOooOoooOooDOOooOoooboooDooo
OO0O0oO0O0oOoooos,79900000000000
oogboe4000OOODODOOA4841,000000
ooooOoooooOooOOooooooobooo
gooomooooooom

ooooooDoo0oOooooooooooao
oooooooobOOoobDOoocooooooao
ooooOooOo0ooOOoDOOooOoooboooDoooo
ooooOooOo0ooOOoDOOooOoooboooDoooo
ooooOooOo0ooOOoDOOooOoooboooDoooo
ooooOooOo0ooOOoDOOooOoooboooDoooo
ooooOooOo0ooOOoDOOooOoooboooDoooo
gooooooooooboooobooooon
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Interest in associates included listed investment in Meiloon Industrial
Company Limited (“Meiloon”) with carrying value as at 31 March 2011
of approximately HK$243,808,000 (2010: HK$225,295,000). Meiloon
is incorporated in Taiwan and its shares are listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation. Since the market value of Meiloon was
lower than its corresponding carrying value as at 31 March 2011 and
2010, Meiloon was assessed for impairment by comparing with the
recoverable amount at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March
2011 and 2010, the recoverable amount was determined based on
the value in use calculations using the cashflow projections based on
financial budget approved by management, past performance and
future market development. A discount rate of 11.8% (2010: 11.8%),
based on an independent professional valuer’s assessment, was applied.
Based on the estimated recoverable amount, no impairment loss
allowance was required as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

Interests in associates included listed investment in GPBI with carrying
value of approximately HK$882,568,000 (2010: HK$854,540,000). GPBI
is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and its shares are listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31 March
2010, the Group further acquired 0.64% of equity interest in GPBI at a
consideration of HK$5,799,000 and resulted in a discount on acquisition
of additional interest in an associate of HK$4,841,000 recognised in
consolidated income statement (2011: nil).

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the market value of GPBI was lower than
its corresponding carrying value in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The management considered that such market values
did not reflect GPBI's fair value to the Group, but instead the Group's
share of GPBI’s net asset value represented a fairer reflection of the
recoverable amount. Accordingly, no impairment loss allowance was
required as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, due to a decline in operating
results, an impairment loss of HK$7,952,000 was made on an investment
in an unlisted associate with reference to the Group’s share of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate and from its ultimate disposal as compared
with its carrying amount (2011: nil).

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao

99



100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmueny

ERERERERERE 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OCODODOO

1. 000000000000
oboobOoooooobOobooooocOmooo
oodoooooocoobooboooooooo
oooo

18. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interest
in Shanghai Jinting Automobile Harness Limited (“SJAH"”) which is
accounted for using proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line
reporting format is set out below:

2011 2010

ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$'000

oooo Current assets 205,899 196,786
ogoooo Non-current assets 96,745 79,117
oooo Current liabilities 111,370 122,892
goooo Non-current liabilities 20,795 -
2011 2010

ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$'000

goooo

(Note)

oo Income 471,590 224,712
oo Expenses 391,905 183,215

000 O00000O00O0O0O0O0OO0O0O0O0O0O0O00O0
000000000000 000000D0000
ooo0oooooon
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Note:  The amounts in 2010 represented income and expenses of a jointly controlled
entity attributable to the Group’s interests therein for the period from date of
acquisition to 31 March 2010.

Details of the jointly controlled entity are set out in note 48.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cconmmueny

00000 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 00000000 COCOOODOO

19. 000000

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

0oO

THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$’000
oooooooooooo Unlisted equity securities at cost 375,235 371,001

O00ooOooooooooo Shareholder’s loan - designated

as available-for-sale assets 135,694 119,995
510,929 490,996
oooooo Impairment loss recognised (385,400) (303,128)
oo Total 125,529 187,868

oooooooooooboooon

An analysis of the Group’s available-for-sale investments is as follows:

ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gerard Corporationl 00 00 all Gerard Corporation (note a) 75,645 124,537
O000MmO0bO PRC distributors (note b) 32,000 35,000
PT GP Industries Indonesiall PT GP Industries Indonesia and
PT Australindo Graha Nusa PT Australindo Graha Nusa 17,883 16,058
oo oooomonced GSM Holdings Limited (“GSMH") (note c) - 12,272
oo Others 1 1
125,529 187,868
ooo Notes:
(@) 000D OO Gerard Corporationd 19% 0 O O O (@) The amount represents a 19% equity interest in and a shareholder’s loan of

0 0O O Gerard Corporation0 0 0 0 OO0 O0O0OODO
16,862,0000 00 O O 0 135,694,0000 O O O O OO
0 0 16,862,0000 00 O O O 119,995,0000 O OO0
Gerard Corporation0 D000 O0O0OOODOOOOO
goooO00O0OO0O0ODOO0OO0ODO0OO0ODO0OODOO0ODOO
000DO000O0O0DO00OO0ODOO0ODOOOOOOOOOooO
Gerard Corporation 0 0 000 0O 0O 059,572,000
0 O000000A47,963,0000 0 M

0000000000000 DOO0O00O0O0O00O00OO
0000000000000 Gerard Corporationd O
0O000o0O0O0DO0OO0OoCOODOOooOoOOoO

000D 0Gerard CorporationD 000000000
0000

AUD16,862,000 (equivalent to HK$135,694,000) (2010: AUD 16,862,000 (equivalent
to HK$119,995,000)) to Gerard Corporation. Gerard Corporation is incorporated
in Australia and is engaged in trading of cookware and kitchen equipment,
packaging, freight forwarding, commercial property ownership and rural interests
in forestry and agriculture. As a result of a decline in anticipated future cash flows,
an impairment loss of HK$59,572,000 (2010: HK$47,963,000) was recognised for the
investment in Gerard Corporation in the current year.

The shareholder’s loans are capital in nature, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The directors of the Company intend to capitalise the
shareholder’s loans as further investments in Gerard Corporation and designate the
shareholder’s loans as available-for-sale investments.

The shareholder’s loans were provided by the shareholders of Gerard Corporation
in proportion to their shareholdings.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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(b) D00 32,000,0000 (11 0 00O OO 35,000,0000 O (1
0000049%00000000000000000
00000000000 0O0000000O0O0000
Oo000D0O0000000000000O0000O0
000000000000 O0000O000O0O0000
00000000000 0000O0O000O0O000O0
0000000000 ooOaOs0000000MOO00O00O
[0 062,000,0000 0 [1J

(0 00D0DO00D0OO0OO0D0D000D01067%0000000
000000000000 000O00O0O00O0O0DO
000000000000 000000GSMHOO
0074280000 000000000 OOOOOO
GSMHO OODOOODOOOOODOOOODOOOOO
000000000000 O0000000O0O0000
000000000000 00o19,700,0000 0
oooooom

(d) O0D0D00D00O0O0D0O0OD00DO0O0O0ODOOODOOOD
000000000000 Primo Opto Group Limited
M Primod 00000 DO0ODOOO24,404,0000 (T O
000000 mPrimoD 0000000 DODOODOO
00000000LEDODDODOO0
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (conTINUED)

(b) The amount of HK$32,000,000 (2010: HK$35,000,000) represents the Group’s 49%
equity investment in a company established in the PRC, which is engaged in selling
and distribution business. The Group entered into contractual agreement with
the shareholders of this company that the Group would not participate in the
daily operations and waive the right to exercise its voting power in the board of
directors’ meetings of this company. Accordingly, this company is accounted for
as available-for-sale investment. As a result of a decline in anticipated future cash
flows, an impairment loss of HK$3,000,000 (2010: HK$62,000,000) was recognised.

(c) The amount represents the Group’s 10.67% equity investment in GSMH, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and principally engaged in the trading of electrical
appliances. During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group made additional
contribution of HK$7,428,000 (2010: nil) to GSMH. The amount was settled by
offsetting the amounts due from GSMH. As a result of a decline in its anticipated
future cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2011, an impairment loss of
HK$19,700,000 (2010: nil) is recognised to fully write off the investment in GSMH.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2010, an impairment loss of HK$24,404,000 was
recognised for the entire investment in Primo Opto Group Limited (“Primo”), a
company incorporated in Cayman Islands, as a result of a decline in its anticipated
future cash flows (2011: nil). Primo was engaged in development, manufacture and
sale of LED lighting products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group cannot exercise significant
influence over those companies and accordingly, such investments are
classified as available-for-sale investments.

All unlisted available-for-sale investments are measured at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
wide that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Impairment losses were recognised based on the recoverable amount
of available-for-sale investments and the related shareholder’s loans,
which were determined by the estimated discounted net cash flows
from the available-for-sale investments. The carrying value of available-
for-sale investments was reduced to the respective recoverable amount.
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21.

20. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
goooooao Loans to third parties 130,718 62,151

000000 Gerard Corporationd O O O O
ooGeGSMHOOOOOOOOOOOOOODOO
000000000000 0oOoOoOooOoOoOOO
000000000000 0oOoOoOooOoOoOOO
0004500068300 0000005.2500
6.660 (00000

O0O0000000005,660,0000 0000
O000moOo0oO0oo0o0o0oo00on0o0oon
ooooooo

Oo0o0ooo0o0O0oo0o00o0oOooO0oooooOoOon
O0o0ooO0ooooooo

The amounts represents loans made to Gerard Corporation and
its subsidiaries, GSMH and an individual. The loans are repayable
by instalments or lump sum by 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2014
respectively. The loans bear interest at rate ranging from 4.50% to 6.83%

(2010: 5.25% to 6.66%) per annum.

The above loans include an amount of HK$5,660,000 (2010: nil) which
were secured by a pledge of shares in an unlisted investment.

Included in long term receivables are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

entity to which they related.

ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oo Australian dollars 30,345 62,151
oo United States dollars 100,373 -
agood 21. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oono THE GROUP
0o COST
ooo At beginning of the year 53,812 53,782
oooo Currency realignment 70 30
ooo At end of the year 53,882 53,812
gooog AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
ooo At beginning of the year 53,138 50,280
ooooo Provided for the year - 2,760
oooooo Impairment loss recognised 104 98
ogoo At end of the year 53,242 53,138
ooono CARRYING VALUES
ooo At end of the year 640 674

oboooOoooooOooOoocoocoOooooo
ooboooooDmoooomoo

Technical know-how is amortised,
period of three to five years from
licence period, whichever is shorter.

using straight-line method, over a
the date of acquisition or over the

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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22.00 22. TRADEMARKS
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oono THE GROUP
oo COST
ooooooo At beginning and end of the year 83,655 83,655
ogd AMORTISATION
ooo At beginning of the year 52,285 48,102
ooooo Provided for the year 4,182 4,183
ooo At end of the year 56,467 52,285
ooo CARRYING VALUE
ogoo At end of the year 27,188 31,370
000000000 0D0DOoDOoDDoOoooooOoO Trademarks acquired by the Group are amortised over their estimated
oo useful lives which are estimated to be twenty years.
23.00 23. GOODWILL
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$’000
oood THE GROUP
oood CARRYING VALUE
ooo At beginning of the year 60,981 59,143
oooo Currency realignment 2,579 1,838
ooo At end of the year 63,560 60,981
0000000000000 O0OOOO0OO?240 Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in
note 24.
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GPO O O Coudrey Investments Limited D 0 O
O00O00OO0O0O0OO0OO000naoas3s,77500000
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24,

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 23 has
been allocated to each individual cash generating units (“CGUs"), being
GP Ind, Coudrey Investments Limited and others of HK$33,775,000
(2010: HK$33,775,000), HK$25,275,000 (2010: HK$22,696,000) and
HK$4,510,000 (2010: HK$4,510,000), respectively.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill,
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next three years using the discount rate of 10% - 15%
(2010: 10% - 13%), while the remaining forecast beyond that three
year period has been extrapolated with reference to annual growth
rate ranging from 1% to 3% (2010: 1% to 3%) in the relevant industries
and countries.

The recoverable amount of each of the CGU has been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The key factors for the value
in use calculation are discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts. Changes
in revenue and direct cost are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations included budgeted sales and gross margins and their
related cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated based on the CGUs’
historical performance and management’s expectation of the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the recoverable
amounts of CGUs to fall below their respective carrying amounts.

og 25. INVENTORIES
oog

THE GROUP
2011 2010
oog ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
oo Raw materials 121,085 115,498
ooo Work in progress 21,619 20,099
ooo Finished goods 178,146 152,702
320,850 288,299

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally

ranging from 30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of trade

and bills receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooooooo Trade and bills receivables
0-600 0 - 60 days 227,361 175,546
61-900 61— 90 days 12,007 11,845
0 0900 Over 90 days 13,701 30,270
253,069 217,661
000000 OoOO0OO0OOOmoao(@o Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (note (a)) 141,637 180,691
000000 OO0OCOO0OCOoOOOmoo (o Consideration receivable for the disposal
of the Group’s electrical business
in Australia (note (b)) - 40,664
0 0 0 O Gerard Corporation 0 0 0 0 Consideration receivable for the disposal
000mod(go of partial interest of investment in
Gerard Corporation (note (c)) 59,147 263,938
453,853 702,954

ooo

(@) 0000D0DO00OO00OO0O0OODOOOOOO0OCOODOD
ooooooooa

() DODO0DO0DDO0DO0DD0OGerard0 00000
OO0 GerardD O OO0 D OO0ODOO0ODOODOODOO
SchneiderD0000000C0O00O0DOO0OODOOODODO
00000O0000000000O0000O0000D0
00o00oO0D0O0OO0O0D0OO0OO0O0DOOOOOOO0O
000000000000O0000000O0000O0
000000000000 000O0O0O0O00O0O0O
000000000000O0O0O0O0O0O0OO0O00O

00000000000000O00D0000O0 Gerard
0000000000000 0ODO000000O0

0000000000 O0DO0000OO0OSchneiderd
0ooboooooo?7,000,0000 0 000O53,170,0000
0Mo0o00o000000000o0a07.000,00000
0ooags3,170,00000 M 0000

00000000 000O0O000O0O000O00O000O0
ooo0oo0o0Oo40000
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

The amount mainly includes loans to independent third parties, VAT recoverable,
prepaid expenses and note receivables.

In 2003, the Group and certain members of the Gerard family (the “Gerard
Vendors”) disposed of their respective share of the EWDIS business in Australia to
Schneider. Part of the proceeds from disposal and the related interest receivable
were retained to cover warranty claims for a period of four years from 22 December
2003 (the “Retention Money”). Prior to the expiry of the warranty period, an
intellectual property claim was instituted against the disposal of EWDIS business in
Australia. As at 31 March 2011, the property claim remained unresolved.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group’s and the Gerard Vendors’
respective Retention Money were pooled together (the “Pooled Retention Money”).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, AUD7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$53,170,000)
was released from the Pooled Retention Money to the Group, following the
provision by the Group of a letter of credit of AUD7,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$53,170,000) in favour of Schneider.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty relating to the settlement of the warranty
claims are discussed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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00000 TarwayD OO OO00OO0O0O0O0ODOOOO
[0 0 O Gerard Corporation 33.39%0 [ [J Gerard( [J
O00GerardO OO OO0O0OOOO0OOOOOOO
O0o0O0OO0O0TarwayDOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
00073500000 0 00059,1470000 0D OO0 OO
0 0 0O 37,089,0000] [ O OO 263,938,0000 00 (111 O
O00OO0OGerardO0D0OODOOODOOODOOODOODO
000000000 DOss50,0000 (10O 00O 6,840,0000
0000000000000 O0OD0OOOs,800,000
00000 46,674,0000 0 [0 GerardO O O O OO O
00000000000 OODOOOOo7oo,00000
ooo0Os56330000 00 0000000OODOOCOO
000000000 Gerardd 000 OO Schneiderd
000000000 D0DOOSchneidero O OOOO
gO00DoOo0o0oO0oDoOoOoOoOoOooOoooOooon

0000000 GerardO 00O O 0O 29,739,0000 (O O
0 0 221,180,0000 O 1 0O O O 20,539,0000 (M1 O O
0152,857,0000 0 [1J 0 0 O 09,200,0000 (0 OO0
68,3230000 0 M OO0O0O0OOO0OOOOMMOOO
140

TarwayO O O Gerard Corporation] 34.33%0 0 0 O
O00OO00OTarwayD OO OO 0OO0O5.85%0 8.38%
O00000004.60%08.88% M 000000000
00000000000000000000 Gerardd
OO0TarwayD OOOOOO0ODOOO0ODO

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (conTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

()

The amount receivable (the “Tarway Loan”) arose from the Group’s divestment
of a 33.39% interest in Gerard Corporation to certain Gerard family members
(the “Gerard Family”) in 2003 and 2005. As at 31 March 2011, the outstanding
Tarway Loan amounted to AUD7,350,000 (equivalent to HK$59,147,000) (2010:
AUD37,089,000 (equivalent to HK$263,938,000)). Pursuant to a deed of settlement
between the Group and Gerard Family dated 2 November 2010, AUD850,000
(equivalent to HK$6,840,000) will be settled in cash in July 2011 and remaining
balance of AUDS5,800,000 (equivalent to HK$46,674,000) will be settled with the
Gerard Vendor’s entitlement to the Pooled Retention Money upon its release
(note b) and cash of AUD700,000 (equivalent to HK$5,633,000) in 2012. During the
year ended 31 March 2011, Gerard Vendors has executed an irrevocable direction
to Schneider to pay its share of the Pooled Retention Money to the Group upon
resolution of the warranty claim.

During the year, the Gerard Family settled approximately AUD29,739,000 (equivalent
to HK$221,180,000), of which approximately AUD20,539,000 (equivalent to
HK$152,857,000) was in cash and AUD9,200,000 (equivalent to HK$68,323,000) was
with investment properties at fair value (see note 14).

The Tarway Loan is secured by way of a charge over 34.33% of the issued shares in
Gerard Corporation. Principal sum of the Tarway Loan was interest bearing at 5.85%
to 8.38% (2010: 4.60% to 8.88%) per annum. Following the satisfactory settlement
recovered by the Group during the year, the Group has agreed with Gerard Family
in June 2011, that the amounts due under the Tarway Loan will no longer be
interest bearing.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (conTINUED)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate credit
limits. The management also closely monitors the credit policy of trade
and other receivables and considers the trade and other receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$14,370,000 (2010: HK$14,513,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired

2011 2010

ooo ooo

HK$°000 HK$°000

310 600 31 - 60 days 12,227 11,994
610 900 61 - 90 days 1,067 981
0 0900 Over 90 days 1,076 1,538
14,370 14,513

oooocoooo Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

2011 2010

ooo ooo

HK$°000 HK$'000

ooooo At 1 April 10,825 20,181
oooo Currency realignment (430) 70
ooooooooo Impairment losses recognised on receivables 1,901 7,224
O0ooooOooooo Amounts written off as uncollectible - (14,850)
oooooo Amounts recovered during the year (4,398) (1,800)
ooooooo At 31 March 7,898 10,825

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (conTINUED)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$7,898,000 (2010:
HK$10,825,000) which the debtors have been in severe financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Group has also written off trade receivables which were considered
as non-recoverable with an aggregate balance of HK$14,850,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010 (2011: nil).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

oon ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
0o Australian dollars 116,365 347,160 - -
0o United States dollars 110,548 161,776 - -
0o Japanese yen 1,596 2,065 - -
ooo Renminbi 108,420 102,948 - -
oo Sterling pound 15,211 13,392 - -
oo Euro 37,217 39,827 - -
nfininlsfnlnlinfnlnln 27. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH

obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
obooooooobOOoOOooOocbOOooOooao
00 00.0001%04.69%] 0 000 0OO00.0001%
03.5%M0O000

oboooooooOoOOooOoobOOooooao
dobooooboooobOoOooood

Bank balances, deposits and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
the Company and short-term bank deposits with maturity of three
months or less, and carry interests ranging from 0.0001% to 4.69% (2010:
0.0001% to 3.5%) per annum.

Included in bank balances, deposits and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

ooo ooo

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
oo Australian dollars 123,552 22,911 4,966 -
oo United States dollars 114,682 98,214 9,301 5,494
od Japanese yen 173 726 - -
goo Renminbi 135,742 100,911 - 17
oo Sterling pound 5,625 8,381 - -
oo Euro 98 19,942 - -

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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28.0000000 28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
000000000000 OoO0OODOOooOOooOO The following is the ageing of creditors presented based on the invoice
ooo date at the end of the reporting period:
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooog Trade creditors
0-600 0 - 60 days 169,953 161,560
61 -900 61— 90 days 48,819 37,161
g oo Over 90 days 19,456 19,689
238,228 218,410
00000000 mooo Other payables and accrued charges (note) 153,425 167,558
391,653 385,968
000 O0O0D0O0O0OOO0OODOOO0OOOOOOOOOOO Note:  The amount mainly includes accrual for operating expenses, receipt in advance
oooo and other tax payables.
00000000000 0D0D0oOoooooOoO Included in creditors and accrued charges are the following amounts
0000000ooOooooo denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

entity to which they relate.

ooo ooo

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
oo Australian dollars 14,514 941 - -
oo United States dollars 40,613 38,586 - -
od Japanese yen 917 716 - -
ooo Renminbi 163,577 132,077 - -
oo Sterling pound 14,1700 10,700 - -
oo Euro 17,638 10,608 - -
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2. 000000 29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
0oooooooo
ooooooo Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
good THE GROUP
goooa Within one year 1,488 1,693 1,447 1,662
d000@mooooooo In the second to fifth
years inclusive 1,180 1,134 1,155 1,107
2,668 2,827 2,602 2,769
oooooooo Less: Future finance
charges (66) (58) - -
ooooooao Present value of lease
obligations 2,602 2,769 2,602 2,769
dodoOoOoOoOooooon Less: Amount due within

one year shown
under current

liabilities (1,447) (1,662)
ooooo Amount due after
one year 1,155 1,107
oogd THE COMPANY
oooood Within one year 312 728 311 720
oooomooooooo In the second to fifth
years inclusive - 312 - 311
312 1,040 311 1,031
oooooOooo Less: Future finance
charges (1) (9 - -
ooooooao Present value of lease
obligations 311 1,031 311 1,031
odooooooooooo Less: Amount due within

one year shown
under current

liabilities (311) (720)
ooooo Amount due after
one year - 311
O0O0D00D00OO0OO0DO0DO0OO0O0OO0OO0OOOO It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
000000000000 O0DOD0O0DOOD equipment under finance leases. The finance leases are negotiated for
000121%0420% 000000 1.20%0 a lease term from 3 to 4 years. Interest rates are charged at the range
10.79% M0 0000000000000 from 1.21% to 4.20% (2010: 1.20% to 10.79%) per annum. All leases are

on a fixed repayment basis.
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30. BANK LOANS AND IMPORT LOANS

ooo ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

000000000mMO0310

oooooboOooooo

0o0moo31o
0ooo

obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
CO00D0000000000000D01.25%0
7.00%10000001.25%0 12.2%0

obooooocoOoooOoooooooOooooo
ooboooooooooooon

Current portion of

bank loans (note 31) 338,154 842,845 189,211 309,354
Short term bank loans
and import loans 394,926 287,775 135,000 -

733,080 1,130,620 324,211 309,354

Secured (note 31) 188 3,644 44 187
Unsecured 732,892 1,126,976 324,167 309,167

733,080 1,130,620 324,211 309,354

The bank loans and import loans of the Group and the Company are
arranged at floating rates. The effective interest rate during the year
ranged from 1.25% to 7.00% (2010: 1.25% to 12.2%) per annum.

Included in bank loans and import loans are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

0ooo ooo

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo 0ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
oo United States dollars 33,723 139,684 - -
ooo Renminbi 29,708 64,249 - -
oo Sterling pound - 1,434 - -
oo Euro 11,059 13,584 - -

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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31.00 31. BORROWINGS
ooo ooo

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
0oo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

oooo Bank loans

ooomooo - Secured (note) 188 983 44 232
oooo - Unsecured 863,669 1,064,804 340,000 474,166

oooooboOooooo

00o00mDbD300

Ooooobooooooooo

863,857 1,065,787 340,044 474,398
Less: Amount due within
one year
- bank loans (note 30) (338,154) (842,845) (189,211) (309,354)

525,703 222,942 150,833 165,044

The bank loans are repayable
within a period of:

ooo Within 1 year 338,154 842,845 189,211 309,354
0oooooooo Between 1 -2 years 238,174 192,109 90,833 156,711
0oooooooo Between 2 - 5 years 287,529 30,833 60,000 8,333

ooDo0OO0ooO0o0oo0OoDOooOO0oooooDooOo
ooooooooog

863,857 1,065,787 340,044 474,398

Included in borrowings are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate:

ooo ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

od

oboooooooOoOooOOooO0oOoboOooooo
0000000000 1.05%05.40%]1 O
000001.06%0 11.73%0

000 00000000000 OOO0O0OO0OO0OOO00O0
0000 3,137,0000 00 738,0000 0 0000
0 01,470,0000 003470000 0000000
o0o0000000000000O0

United States dollars 66,149 - - =

Borrowings are arranged at floating rates. The range of effective
interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the
Group's borrowings from 1.05% to 5.40% (2010: 1.06% to 11.73%) per
annum.

Note:  As at 31 March 2011, bank loans were secured by the Group’s and the
Company'’s property, plant and equipment of HK$3,137,000 and HK$738,000
(2010: HK$1,470,000 and HK$347,000) respectively.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmueny

ERERERERERE 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OCODODOO

32.0000
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo

32. DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been

oooo offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oooooo Deferred tax assets 1,187 -
oooooo Deferred tax liabilities (23,189) (15,785)
(22,002) (15,785)
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
oooo Balance at beginning of the year (15,785) (17,324)
oooo Currency realignment (749) (367)
000000 Oo0Ommoo110 (Charge) credit to profit and loss (note 11) (5,468) 6,780
O00ooO0ooooooooo On acquisition of a jointly controlled entity - (8,279)
oooooo Transfer to taxation payable - 3,405
ooog Balance at end of the year (22,002) (15,785)

ooboooooooooooooocooooo

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
by the Group:

ooo THE GROUP
oDooo
oooooo oooo
oooooo Withholding
oooo Accelerated tax on ooon
Investment tax undistributed Tax oo
properties depreciation profits losses Total
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oooooooooo At 1 April 2009 (9,676) (7,922) - 274 (17,324)
oooo Currency realignment - (367) - - (367)
oooooooooo On acquisition of a jointly
controlled entity - (1,708) (6,571) - (8,279)
oooomooo Credit (charge) to profit or loss 9,636 (680) (1,902) (274) 6,780
oooooo Transfer to tax payable - - 3,405 - 3,405
do0ooooooooo At 31 March 2010 (40) (10,677) (5,068) - (15,785)
gooo Currency realignment 103 (97) (755) - (749)
jooomooo Credit (charge) to profit or loss 1,124 (1,543) (5,049) - (5,468)
ooooooooooOoO At 31 March 2011 1,187 (12,317) (10,872) - (22,002)

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
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32. 000 ooo 32. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINUED)

ooocooOobDoooooooboOoooao
362,417,0000 0 O OO 0O 0O O 352,126,00000
oMmooooooooooooooooooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
gooooooooooooooooooooo

oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oooooooooooooooooooooao

oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
O0O000o0oooooo0aos,197,0000 @00
0000469130000 0 M O000O0OCOOOOO
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oooooooooooo

ooooopoDoo0oOooooooooooao
oobooOoooooOOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooo0o0ooooOoooooooooooo

At 31 March 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$362,417,000
(2010: HK$352,126,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profits streams. All tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax, a withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Apart from the undistributed profit arising from a jointly controlled
entity, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to
profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group has deductible temporary differences of HK$51,197,000
(2010: HK$46,913,000) relating to amortisation and impairment losses
recognised in respect of its trademark and technical know-how. No
deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

As 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Company has not provided deferred

taxation as there was no significant temporary differences arising
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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33.00

33. SHARE CAPITAL
oooo
Number of
shares
o 00O
'000 HK$'000
gooooooosodnD Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each:
goooo Authorised:
0000000000ooooooooooooon Balance at 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 800,000 400,000
OOO0O0oboOoOooooOooo Increase on 22 February 2010 400,000 200,000
gooooOooOooOooOoOooooOoboOobOoboOo Balance at 31 March 2010, 1 April 2010 and
oDooooDoooog 31 March 2011 1,200,000 600,000
goooooo Issued and fully paid:
g0oo0oO0OO0OO0O0O0ObOOoObOOoCOOooOOoDOOO Balance at 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 549,285 274,643
ooooooooon Issue of shares upon rights issue 235,408 117,703
00000000000000000000000 Balance at 31 March 2010, 1 April 2010 and
00ooooooooooo 31 March 2011 784,693 392,346

oo0oo0o0oDoO0o0o0o0oooOoOooOoooan
000000000000 400,000,0000 00 O
0 800,000,0000 O O 0500 0000 O0ODO
600,000,0000 00 O O O O 400,000,0000 O O
o500 0000MOOOOOOO0OO0OOOOO
0000235407,8850000500000000
O0000070000000006500000
O30000o0ooo0O0OO0OCoOoOOoOoOoooog

oooooobooooobooon

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

Pursuant to extraordinary general meeting dated 22 February 2010,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$400,000,000 divided into 800,000,000 shares of HK$0.50 each to
HK$600,000,000 by the creation of an additional 400,000,000 shares
of HK$0.50 each. On 17 March 2010, the Company issued 235,407,885
rights shares of HK$0.50 each, on the basis of 3 rights shares for every 7
existing shares at the subscription price of HK$0.65 per rights share. The
new rights shares issued are ranked pari passu in all respects with the

existing shares in issue.
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34. SHARE OPTIONS
(i) The Company’s share option schemes

34.000
() OO0DODO0O0OO

ooboooooOoooOoOoooooOooooo
ooooooooOmooobooOoooo
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
oooboooooooooooooocooo

ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
oboooooOooOobOooooomoo
oboomoooooooooooooo
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
OO0oo0O0010%000000000000
ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
OO0OC0O0OO0OO0O0000001%0

ooboooooOoooOoooooOooooa
doooooooooooo1toooao
ooboooooOoooOoOoooooOooooo
ooboooooOoooOoOoooooOooooo
OO0O00000O000196350000000
oobooooODmoooobooomoonoa
ooooooo1.27000

On 7 September 2007, an ordinary resolution was passed to adopt
a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”). The purpose of
the Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible employees and directors as incentives and rewards for their
contributions to the Company.

According to the Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
are authorised, at any time within ten years after the adoption of
the Option Scheme, to grant options to any directors or employees
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
Company's shares at a price not less than the average of the closing
prices of the Company'’s shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date of the options, the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the offer date or the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares, whichever is higher. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Option Scheme will be valid and effective for
a period of ten years from the date of adoption. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up
to the offer date is not permitted to exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue.

Options granted under the Option Scheme must be taken up within
the period as specified in the offer of options and upon payment of
HK$1 as the consideration for the options granted. Options granted
are exercisable within the period as specified in the offer of options.
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company granted share
options of 19,635,000 shares (2010: nil) to eligible participants at an
exercise price of HK$1.27 per share.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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34. 00 ooo 34.

() 0000000 oo
ooo0oooooooOOooobDOooooao
gooooooooooooooooo

SHARE OPTIONS (conTinUED)

(i) The Company’s share option schemes (continued)
The share options outstanding under the Option Scheme during the
year ended 31 March 2011 are as follows:

oooooo oooooo oooooon
oooo oo oooooon
oooo oooon Lapsed/ oooo
ooo Outstanding Granted cancelled Outstanding
oooo ooooag Exercise at during during at
Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.4.2010 the year the year 31.3.2011
oo
HK$
oooog
Executive directors:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 - 26.4.2015 1.27 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
oooooo
Non-executive directors:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 - 26.4.2015 1.27 - 900,000 - 900,000
oooooooo
Independent non-executive
directors:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 - 26.4.2015 1.27 - 900,000 - 900,000
ooo
Employees:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 - 26.4.2015 1.27 - 13,235,000 (925,000) 12,310,000
- 19,635,000 (925,000) 18,710,000
ooood
Exercisable at the end
of the year 18,710,000

ooooooooOobOoooOooooao
1.270000000000000000C0O
57350000 000000000000

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011

The closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant of the
options was HK$1.27. The estimated fair value of the share options
granted was HK$5,735,000 and was recognised as an expense during
the year.
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3. 00 uoo

0}

(i)

0000000 ooo

Black ScholesDO 000000000000
ooo0oooOooooOOooobDOooooao
gooood

34. SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED)

(i)

The Company’s share option schemes (continued)

The Black Scholes pricing model was used to determine the fair
value of the share options granted during the year. The key inputs
to the model were:

oooon

oooooon

27.4.2010

ooooooo Stock price as at grant date HK$1.27

ooo Exercise price HK$1.27

oooo Expected volatility 45.68%

oooooooo Expected life of options 5 years

ooooo Risk free rate 1.17%

ooooooo Expected dividend yield 4.75%
do0C0ooCooooo Sub-optimal exercise factor for executive directors/

lodoooooooooooood non-executive directors/independent
non-executive directors/employees 2.5

oob0ooobOoooooooObOoooa
oob0ooobOoooooooObOoooa
oobooooboooobooooOoooo

GPOOOOOOO
GPOCOOOOOODOOODOOOOCODOO
00000000000 000O0O0OGPO
CO00O0O00ODoOGePOOOOODOOOO
oCooOO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0O0O0OGPODOOO
coGepOOODOOCODOOCOOOODOOOO
ooboooobOoooOoooobOoooa
OCO00o0O0OO0OOoO0O0OOeGePOOOOOOOO
OCo0oO0ePOCOOOCOOOODOOOO
gooo

ooGPpOODOOOODOOOOGPOODOO
oo0oePOODOOOOOOOOOOOOGP
ooboooooOoooOooooObOoooao
oepOO0OOODOCOOOCOOOODOOOO
ooboooooOoooOooooObOoooao
O000000000020% 000000
OCO00Oo0O0OO0OOO0OO0OOO0O0OGePOODOOOO
ooboooooOoooOooooObOoooao
ooboooooOoooOooooObOoooao
OO00000015% 0000000000
ooboooooOoooOoooobOoooa
OO00oO0O0OOoO0ePOCOOOOODOOOO
OO0OCO0O0O20%0

(i)

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the options.

GP Ind’s share option scheme

GP Ind has a share option scheme (the “GP Ind Option Scheme”),
which was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 November
1999. The purpose of the GP Ind Option Scheme is to enable GP Ind
to grant options to eligible employees and directors as incentives
and rewards for their contributions to GP Ind. The GP Ind Option
Scheme reached its maximum period of ten years on 18 November
2009 and ceased to operate accordingly. However, options
previously granted under the GP Ind Option Scheme continue to
be exercisable in accordance with the terms of the GP Ind Option
Scheme.

According to the GP Ind Option Scheme, the directors of GP Ind are
authorised to grant options to any directors or employees of GP Ind
or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for GP Ind’s shares at a price
not more than 20% discount of the average of the closing prices of
GP Ind’s shares on the three trading days immediately preceding
the offer date of the options or the nominal value of the GP Ind’s
shares, whichever is higher. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
GP Ind Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten
years from the date of adoption. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the GP Ind Option
Scheme cannot exceed 15% of the nominal amount of the issued
share capital of GP Ind on the day preceding the offer date. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual at any time is not permitted to exceed 20% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the GP Ind Option Scheme.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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3. 00 ooo
(i) GPOO 0000 ooo

O0000OO0O00O0DoOOoOOoOooGPOOOO
0000000000 0OoOOoOOooOoOoOoono
00896700000 00O0ODODODO 9,687,000
dMoooGePOOOOOOODODOOOOO
0000d2%0000002%00000
0000000000 0oOOoOo0oOoOoOoono
001000000000 ooooooono
0000000000 0oOOoOo0oOoOoOoono
0000000000 0oOOoOo0oOoOoOoono
gooooooooooad

ooo0oooooooOOooobDOooooao
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obooO0ooDbOooOOoooooDoOoooaeePOd
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34. SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED)

(ii) GP Ind’s share option scheme (continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and outstanding on 31 March 2011 under the GP Ind Option Scheme
was 8,967,000 (2010: 9,687,000), representing 2% (2010: 2%) of
the shares of GP Ind on 31 March 2011. Options granted must be
taken up within the period as specified in the offer of options, and
upon payment of S$1 as the consideration for the options granted.
Options granted are exercisable after the first anniversary or the
second anniversary of the date of grant of such options and will
expire at the close of business on the fifth anniversary or the tenth
anniversary thereof, respectively.

The share options outstanding under the GP Ind Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 and as at 31 March
2010 and 2011 are as follows:

ooo ooo

ooooo goooo

000 000000 000000 ooo 000 0Oooooo
ooooo 000 oooooo ooooo ooooo ooo

oooooo oooooc 000000 #©OD0O0OOO0 OooOcO goooo

oooooo ooooo Lapsed/ oooo goooo ooooo lapsed/ 000000

oooo Exercised cancelled 0000 Transferred Exercised cancelled 000000

ooo gooo duringthe  duringthe Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  during the gooo
oooo ooooo Exercise  Outstanding  yearended  yearended at31.3.2010  yearended  yearended  yearended Outstanding
Date of grant Exercisable period price  at1.4.2009 31.3.2010 313.2010 and 1.4.2010 31.3.201 31.3.201 3132011 at31.3.2011
oooo ooocoo ooooo
S$ (Note (a)) (Note (b))
gooooo
Directors of the Company:
14.4.2000 14.4.2002 - 13.4.2010 0.456 410,000  (110,000) - 300,000 - (300,000 - -
4.4.2001 442003 -3.4.2011 0.620 800,000 - - 800,000 = = = 800,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 514,000 - - 514,000 - - - 514,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 1,004,000 - - 1,004,000 - - - 1,004,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005 - 4.7.2014 1.030 1,290,000 - - 1,290,000 - - - 1,290,000
4,018,000  (110,000) - 3,908,000 - (300,000) - 3,608,000
GpOOO0OO0O
Executive directors of GP Ind:
4.4.2001 4.4.2003 -3.4.2011 0.620 64,000 = = 64,000 180,000 = = 244,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 41,000 = = 41,000 = = = 41,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 335,000 = = 335,000 135,000 = = 470,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005 - 4.7.2014 1.030 385,000 = = 385,000 135,000 = = 520,000
825,000 = = 825,000 450,000 = - 1,275,000
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3. 00 uoo
(ii) GPOOO0O0OOmoo

34. SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED)
(ii) GP Ind’s share option scheme (continued)

ooo ooo
ooooo goooo
000 0ODOo0Oo0 DOoOooo ooo 000 Oooooo
ooooo ooo0 o0OOoDOO0 goooo ooooo ooo
oooooo goooo OoOOOOCO OO0OOOO0 Ooocooo goooo
oooooa ooocoo Lapsed/ oooo goocoo ooocoo lapsed/ O0OOOOO
oooo Exercised cancelled 0000 Transferred Exercised cancelled 000000
ooo gooo duringthe  duringthe  Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  during the gooo
oooo ooooo Exercise  Outstanding  yearended  yearended at31.3.2010  yearended  yearended  yearended Outstanding
Date of grant Exercisable period price  at1.4.2009 31.3.2010 313.2010 and 1.4.2010 31.3.201 31.3.201 313.2011  at31.3.2011
oooo ooooo (0oo)
S$ (Note (a)) (Note (b))
GPO00000C0DOO
Non-executive directors of GP Ind:
5.7.2004 5.7.2005 - 4.7.2009 1.030 270,000 - (270,000) - - - - -
ooo
Employees:
14.4.2000 14.4.2002 - 13.4.2010 0456 252,000 - (20,0000 232,000 - (28,000)  (204,000) -
4.4.2001 4.4.2003 - 3.4.2011 0.620 828,000 - (70,0000 758,000  (180,000) - - 578,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 409,000 - (45,0000 364,000 - - (13,000) 351,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 1,663,000 - (65,000) 1,598,000 (135,000 - (20,000) 1,443,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005 - 4.7.2014 1.030 2,067,000 - (65,000) 2,002,000 (135,000 - (155,0000 1,712,000
5,219,000 - (265,000) 4,954,000  (450,000)  (28,000)  (392,000) 4,084,000
ooooo
Exercisable at the end of the year 9,687,000 8,967,000
000 000 GPOOODOOODOODOODOOODO Note:  (a) The market price of GP Ind’s shares on the date of which options
goooooOooooooooo were exercised on 30 March 2010 was $$0.50 per share. The
goooso00000GPOODOOO closing price of GP Ind’s shares immediately before the date on
Oo0o0DoDO0oO0oOoooOoOoDoooo which the options were exercised was $$0.52 per share.
05200000
ooo GPOOODDOOODOODOOD (b) The market price of GP Ind’s shares on the date of which options

0000O000O0O0O0O0O0O0o0O
gooos5i00O0OOGPOOOO
0000O000O0oOoOoOooooo
go.5100000

were exercised on 21 April 2010 was $S$0.51 per share. The closing
price of GP Ind’s shares immediately before the date on which
the options were exercised was $$0.51 per share.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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35.00
oono
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
ooood

obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
oooooooo

35. RESERVES
THE GROUP
Capital reserve mainly represents discount on deemed acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary and the capitalisation of profits of
subsidiaries established in the PRC that were available for appropriation
after the approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group's share of statutory reserves of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

ood THE COMPANY
oooooo ooooo
oood Capital oooo Share oooo
Share redemption Dividend option Retained 0o
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ooo oon onn oon noo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
goooooOoooo At 1 April 2009 463,935 35,358 8,239 - 207,158 714,690
goooog Issue of rights shares 35,312 - - - - 35,312
gooooo Share issue expense (5,937) - - - - (5,937)
oooag Loss for the year - - - - (66,880) (66,880)
oooono Dividend paid
joooooooog - 2009 final dividend - - (8,239) - - (8,239)
gooooooooo - 2010 interim dividend = = - - (16,479) (16,479)
ooono Dividend proposed
gooooOooooo - 2010 final dividend = = 27,464 - (27,464) -
doooDoooooooo At 31 March 2010 493,310 35,358 27,464 - 96,335 652,467
0ooooooooon Recognition of share based
payment - - - 5,735 - 5,735
0ooooooo Transfer upon cancellation
of share options - - - (268) 268 -
oooo Profit for the year - - - - 48,440 48,440
ooooo Dividend paid
oooooooooo -2010 final dividend - - (27,464) - - (27,464)
oooooooooo - 2011 interim dividend - - - - (19,617) (19,617)
ooono Dividend proposed
oooooooooo -2011 final dividend - - 23,541 - (23,541) -
oooooooooooo At 31 March 2011 493,310 35,358 23,541 5,467 101,885 659,561
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36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Movement of the Group’s non-controlling interests during the year

36.00000
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo

oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
oo

ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 is as follows:

oooooo oooooo
ooo ooooo oo
Shares of Share option
net assets of reserve of
subsidiaries a subsidiary Total
ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
oooooooooo At 1 April 2009 633,241 10,076 643,317
000000000000O00O0 Share of exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign operations 41,296 - 41,296
0o00o0oooooooo Share of other comprehensive
expense of associates (3,495) - (3,495)
00000000000000OD0OOO Share of other comprehensive expense
released upon disposal of associates (91) - (91)
0000000D0OOooOOoooO Share of exchange differences released
upon deregistration of subsidiaries (5,981) - (5,981)
oooooo Share of profit for the year 53,249 - 53,249
oooooooo Transfer upon cancellation
of share option - (331) (331)
oo0oooooooo Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries (246,903) - (246,903)
ooooooooo Dividend paid to
non-controlling shareholders (16,900) - (16,900)
0oooooooo Capital contribution by
non-controlling interests 278 - 278
0000000000000000000000 At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 454,694 9,745 464,439
000000000000000 Share of exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign operations 5,048 - 5,048
0000000000000 Share of other comprehensive income
of associates 5,485 - 5,485
000000000000000000 Share of other comprehensive income
released upon disposal of associates 2,558 - 2,558
0000000000000000 Share of exchange differences released
upon deregistration of subsidiaries (51) - (51)
oooooo Share of profit for the year 28,427 - 28,427
00o0o0oooon Transfer upon cancellation
of share option - (100) (100)
000000000000000 Acquisition/deemed acquisitions of
additional interests in subsidiaries (46,161) - (46,161)
0000o0ooo Dividend paid to
non-controlling shareholders (21,609) - (21,609)
0000000000OoO At 31 March 2011 428,391 9,645 438,036

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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37z.000000

obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
OCO00000000005%010%00000
obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo
oboooOooOmoooooOooooooo
obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo
ooboooooOoooooooooooooo

obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo

oobooooooooooo

obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo
obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo
obooooocoooOooOoooooOooooo
0000000000000 0O286,0000 (100
coooOos330000 0000000000
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo
OO0O0O00720000 M@ O0000O0OO28,0000

o

obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo
obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo
obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo
obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo
obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo

ooboooobooooooo

obooooocoOooOoooooooOooooo
000O0s8917,0000 M OO0 OOOS8,818,0000

omooooood
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries participate in the Gold
Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme, for all qualified employees in Hong Kong. The scheme
is funded by contributions from employers according to the employees’
remuneration and length of services as defined under the trust deed.
The monthly contribution rates of this scheme ranged from 5% to 10%.
At the same time, the Group also participated in a mandatory provident
fund (“MPF") scheme registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. All new employees have the option to join
the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme or the MPF scheme with
terms as stipulated by the MPF Authority.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong
participate in central provident fund schemes established by the
relevant authority in their respective countries.

For the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, the unvested benefits
of employees who terminate employment are utilised by the employers
to reduce their future level of contributions. The amounts of unvested
benefits so utilised by the employers during the year ended 31 March
2011 were approximately HK$286,000 (2010: HK$313,000). As at 31
March 2011, the forfeited contributions of HK$72,000 (2010: HK$28,000)
were available to reduce the level of employers’ future contributions.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the
respective municipal government in various places in the PRC where the
Group operates. The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as
a percentage of the monthly payroll costs and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the Group. The Group has no other
obligations for the payment of pension and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the above contributions payments.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$8,917,000 (2010:
HK$8,818,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes during the year
ended 31 March 2011.
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38.00000000 38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

OCO0000O00COO0O0O00OGPOOCODODOO
doooooooOOooOOooOoOobOooooao
oo00@oo0ooOOnoooooomao
OOmoOooooozsoeo000 000000
ob0DMmooODmooooooboooooooo
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
OO0OCOOCDOOODODO224,00000000

On 29 January 2010, GP Ind entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its interest in GP Lighting
Technology (Huizhou) Limited (“GPLT (HZ)"), a subsidiary of GP Ind,
at a consideration of HK$2,500,000. GPLT (HZ) was engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of lighting products and accessories and a
gain on disposal of HK$224,000 was recognised in the profit or loss for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

2010
ooo
HK$’000

gooood
ooooooo
gooooo

oooooooooo
oooo

oono

oobooooooooboooooocoon
ooo
ooooooo
oooooooooo

oobooooOooooOOooooOoOooooan
dooooooooooooocoooooooo

Net assets disposed of
Bank balances and cash 4,041

Other payables (1,773)
2,268

Translation reserve released upon disposal 8
Gain on disposal 224
Total consideration 2,500

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
arising from disposal:
Cash consideration received 2,500
Bank balances and cash disposed of (4,041)

(1,541)

The disposal of the subsidiary did not result in significant impact on
the Group's cashflow or operating results for the year ended 31 March
2010.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cconmmueny

ERERERERERE 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OCODODOO

39. 0000000000
oboooooooOooOooooOooooan
99,967,0000 000 O0O0O0O0ODOODOODO
gOoose0000O00OO0O0OO0O0OO0DOOO
ooboooooOoooOoOooooOooooo
ooboooooOoooOoOooooOooooo
oooOooooo

39. ACQUISITION OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
On 26 October 2009, the Group acquired the 50% equity interest
of SJAH at a cash consideration of HK$99,967,000 from a former
associate of the Group. After completion, SJAH has become a
jointly controlled entity of the Group. Proportionate consolidation
is used to account for SJAH's results and position in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

ooo
HK$’000
ooooooooooo Proportionate share of the carrying amounts
oooooooo and fair values of net assets acquired:
oooooooo Property, plant and equipment 44,412
oooooooooo Investment in an associate 27,942
oo Inventories 61,380
ddd00oO0O0OOoOO0OOoOoOoOoOoOooO Trade and other receivables and prepayments 60,319
oooooOooooo Bank balances and cash 82,169
ooooooo Creditors and accrued charges (76,465)
oooo Taxation payable (912)
oooooo Deferred taxation liabilities (8,279)
oooo Bank borrowings (36,888)
153,678
oooo Discount on acquisition (53,711)
oo Consideration 99,967
ooooo Satisfied by:
oooo Cash paid 99,967
dooooooooo Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash
ooooooo equivalents arising from acquisition of
ooooooooo the jointly controlled entity:
O000000O0OO0OO0OoOoOOoDOooDoOo Group's share of cash and cash equivalents
ooooooooo (bank balances and cash) of SJAH acquired 82,169
oooo Cash paid (99,967)
(17,798)

ooboooobOoooOooooOOoooao
ooboooobOoooOooooOOoooao
05371100000 0000000000CO
ooboooooooooooon
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A discount on acquisition of HK$53,711,000 arose as the
consideration was arrived at with reference to the net asset
value of SJAH on or around 31 December 2007. However due to
the downturn of the economy in 2008, the transaction did not
materialise until 2009.
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40.

41.

42.

oooobooo
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
oboooOoooooOooOoooooOooooo
Oo0001,884,0000 M O0O0OCODO620,0000
o

oboooOoooooOooOoocooobOooooo
oboooOoooooOooOoocooobOooooo
OO0TarwayO (O OOO0O0O0O0OOOMOOOOO
0O0000D009200,0000 (M 00O 68,323,000
o

OCO00DoOO0O0OoOO0O0OOO0OO0OOO0OO0OOOO0OGP
O00OGerardDO0OOODOOOOODODOO
OCO0O0ODOOOoOO0001600000GPODOO
000 Tarwayd O O 18,300,0000 O O 0O O
99,375.0000 000 00O0O0ODOOMIM

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered into finance
lease arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of HK$1,884,000 (2010: HK$620,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group accepted certain
investment properties with a fair value of approximately AUD9,200,000
(equivalent to HK$68,323,000) from certain debtors as part of the

repayment of the Tarway Loan, in lieu of cash (2010: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, GP Ind entered into a SCR
agreement with the Gerard Family, detailed in note 16, as a result an
amount of $$18,300,000 (approximately HK$99,375,000) of GP Ind’s

share capital was offset with the Tarway Loan (2011: nil).

gooo 41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
ooo ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
0 Schneiderd 0 0O 0O O O 0O O 7,000,00000 O Letter of credit
000000 26(b)o of AUD 7,000,000 drawn
in favour of Schneider
(as set out in note 26(b)) 56,331 - - -
OooOooooooooo Guarantees given to banks
in respect of banking
facilities to associates:
goooo — amount guaranteed 35,409 261,067 - 135,066
ooooo — amount utilised 4,669 181,636 - 102,020
oo 42. COMMITMENTS
ooo
THE GROUP
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000
do0oO0oOoOCOoOoOoOooOOoO Capital expenditure in respect of
ddo0oooooooooo acquisition of property, plant and
oooo equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 1,075 4,081

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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43. 000000 43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
ooo As lessee
000000000000 OoO0OODOOooOOooOO At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding
oo0o0oOoOoOoOoOoOoooo commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:
2011 2010
ooooo ooooo
00000  Machinery 00000  Machinery
Land and and 0o Land and and 0o
buildings equipment Others buildings  equipment Others
oon ooo ooo oon ooo ooo
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
ooo Within one year 29,912 1,617 1,927 30,166 1,648 1,756
oooomoooono In the second to fifth years
ooooo inclusive 50,550 1,136 840 68,555 1,589 1,427
oooo Over five years 201 - - 1,407 - -

80,663 2,753 2,767 100,128 3,237 3,183

OC00o0O0oO0o0ooOo0oDooOoDooooO Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
O000o0o0o0ooooooooooooo its office properties and factories. Leases are negotiated for terms from
one to six years.

ooo As lessor
OC00o0O0oO0o0ooOo0oDooOoDooooO At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
ooooooo tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo Within one year 1,535 -
Oo0omooooooooo In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,698 -
3,233 -
4.000000 44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
O0000o00oooOoooooOooo The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its
associates:
2011 2010
ooo ooo
HK$'000 HK$'000
oooooog Purchases from associates 20,792 15,788
gpoooooag Sales to associates 18,846 8,865
gooCcooooooo Management fee income received
from associates 10,821 15,081
oooooooooo Interest income received from associates - 22
oooooooooo Rental income from associates 294 3,190
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44,

45,

ooo00ooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooo0oooooooooo

44,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company have
the following balances with its associates included under trade and
other receivables and prepayments and creditors and accrued charges:

oon ooo
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2011 2010 2011 2010
ooo ooo ooo ooo
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
oooooooo Trade receivables due from
associates 2,943 2,288 - -
oooooooooo Other receivables due from
associates 3,234 3,707 2,840 3,523
oooooooo Trade payables due to
associates 3,738 3,123 - -
goo0oooOooooo Other payables due to
associates 6,091 14,842 7 2,646

oobooOOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
oooitod

ooooooon
ooooooOooOoOoOoooooooooao
0000000 oOooOooOoobooooao
68,019,0000 000D O0DOOOOOOOOO OO
oobooOooO0oooOOooDOooOoooDoooboooo
68,019,0000 00 00O0O0O0O0O0O0OOOMO
gopo0oze@m0o0oocoO0oooobooobooo
o0o0o0OOoOoDOoOoD2000 OOOODOO
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
ooooOooO0o0ooOOooOOooOoooboooboooo
oooocooo

45.

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the
Company and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 10.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement (the
"Subscription Agreement”) to subscribe for a convertible note in the
principal amount of approximately HK$68,019,000 issued by GSMH (the
“Convertible Note”). The Group has satisfied the consideration for the
Convertible Note by discharging and releasing GSMH from a debt of
approximately HK$68,019,000 (included in note 20). The Convertible
Note has a final maturity date of 21 April 2016 and is interest bearing
at 2.00% per annum. Unless previously converted into new shares
of GSMH or repaid in accordance with the terms of the Convertible
Note, GSMH shall redeem the Convertible Note on 21 April 2016 the
outstanding principal together with interest accrued thereon. The
Group can convert the Convertible Note in whole or in part into new
shares to be issued by GSMH during the period from 21 April 2012 to
21 April 2016, on the basis of conversion as set out in the Subscription
Agreement. Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
of the Group were authorised for issue, the management considers that
there is no significant financial effect to the Group upon subscribing the
Convertible Note.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao

129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cconmmueny

ERERERERERE 00O O Yearended 31 March 2011 000000000 OCODODOO

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 and

46. 000 00O DO
obooooocoOoooOooOoocoooooooo

odoooooooooo 2010 are as follows:

gooooo
Name of subsidiary

gooooooo
Place of
incorporation/
registration

oo0oooooo
Nominal value of
issued share/
registered capital

oooo
Principal activities

oo
Electronics division

gdoooogg**
Bowden Industries Limited**

CIH Limited**

OD00O0O0D00O0**#

Ever Grace Capital Investment Limited**#

Famingo Pte Ltd. **

GP Acoustics Limited **

GP Acoustics (HK) Limited **

GP Acoustics (UK) Limited **

000MOoomonQ**
GP Electronics (China) Limited **

O0oooDoooooan**
(95.00%) (2010: 92.50%)@

GP Electronics (Huizhou) Co Ltd. **
(95.00%) (2010: 92.50%)@

GPOOOOOO (81.12%)*#
(2010: 79.48%)

GP Industries Limited (81.12%)#*#
(2010: 79.48%)

goooOonooogn**
GP Industries Marketing Ltd**

oo
Hong Kong

oogd
Republic of Singapore

oo
Hong Kong

ood
Republic of Singapore

ooooooo
British Virgin Islands

oo
Hong Kong

oo
United Kingdom

og

Hong Kong

oo
PRC

ood
Republic of Singapore

oo
Hong Kong

HK$476,000,000

$$201,553,536

HK$10,000

S$2

US$14,865,980

HK$20,000,000

£22,500,000

HK$2

HK$100,000,000

$$104,271,696

HK$8,010,000

oooo
Investment holding

oooo
Investment holding

oooo
Investment holding

oooo
Investment holding

oooo
Investment holding

goooboooooooo
Marketing and trading

of audio and electronics

equipment

Ooo00oboOOoDbOOoDOo
Investment holding and

trading of loudspeakers

oooo
Investment holding

goooooboooo
Manufacturing of

electronics and acoustics

products

oooo
Investment holding

goooooooooooo

oooooo

Marketing and trading of
quality parts and
components and hygienic
and health care products
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46. 00000 oo 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

oooooo
Name of subsidiary

ooooooo
Place of
incorporation/
registration

pooOo0oOoOoo
Nominal value of
issued share/
registered capital

oooo
Principal activities

O000oo
Electronics division (CONTINUED)

OO0OCO0@MOOmOOo*=*+* oo HK$50,000,000 OO0 0000000000
GP Lighting Technology (Huizhou) PRC Manufacturing and
Limited **"# trading of lighting
products and accessories
O00000OO0O0OOOO** oo HK$14,248,037 D0 O0O0OO0O0ODOOO
GP Precision Parts (Huizhou) Ltd. **" PRC oooo
Manufacturing of metal parts
and personal health care
products
00DO0D0OO0OD0ODOn** oo HK$1,000,000 0000
GPE International Limited ** Hong Kong Investment holding
O00DmOoomogno** oo HK$34,000,000 OO OOOOOOO
GP Electronics (HK) Limited** Hong Kong Marketing and trading
of audio products
oo0o0oooooooono*** oo US$2,283,000 DO O0OODOO0OOOO
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Ltd. **" PRC ooo0o
Manufacturing of
automotive wire harness,
transformers and switching
mode power supply
OO0OCOOOn **# oo HK$10,000 O OO0
King Bright Capital Investment Limited **# Hong Kong Investment holding
OoOoooogao ** oo HK$2,750,000 0O O0O0OO0O
Maxson Industries Limited** Hong Kong Investment holding and
trading
CO0OCOoOooooaO** oo HK$15,580,000 OO0 O0O00O0O0OOOOOO
Maxson Industries (Huizhou) Limited *** PRC ooooooo
Plastic mould fabrication,
manufacturing of injection
moulded plastic components
and medical plastic products
Tarway Two Pty Ltd.** oo A$96,840,002 OO OO
Australia Investment holding

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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* 0O00O0000O00O0O0C0O0OOO0
* 0GPOOODOOOODOODO
@ [00000000000O00Ob00oO0oooOooooo

A O00000000O0O00D0O0O0O00O0O0O0O0O0O0O0

# 000000O0OO0OOCOOOOOOOOOOOO

# 00000O0ODOODOOOOOOOOOOOOO

## 000000000000104,206,0060 00000
104,271,6960 0 00 0

0 O00O0O0O0O0O0OoO

ooooOoooOooOooOooOoooboooboooo
ooo0oooooooooo
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46. 00000 ooo 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)
ooooooo gooooooon
Place of Nominal value of
oooooo incorporation/ issued share/ 0000
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital Principal activities
oooo
Other investments
GP eBiz Limited" 0ooo Us$2 0OOOD0ODO
Cayman Islands Investment holding
in Hong Kong
ooooopooo® oo HK$4 0000
GP Technologies Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding
oooooo* oo HK$2 0000
Grand Prix Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding
KH Technology Corporation © oooo US$10,000 OO OO
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
Makinen Properties Limited “ ooooooo Us$1 oooo
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
oooooooo® oo HK$2 0000
Peak Power Investment Limited “ Hong Kong Property holding
Triwish Limited * 0oooooo Us$1 DoOoOoooao
British Virgin Islands Property holding
in Hong Kong
oooooooons oo HK$1,000,000 OO 00O
Whitehill Investment Limited " Hong Kong Investment holding

*  Directly held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

** Directly or indirectly held by GP Ind.

@ These companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures registered under the
PRC law.

A These companies are established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise registered
under the PRC law.

#  Disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2010.

## Incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2011.

##H# Nominal value of issued registered capital increased from $$104,206,096 to
$$104,271,696.

0O Directly held and wholly-owned by the Company.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Company in the above companies are ordinary shares issued
by these companies.
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46.

47.

ooo00ooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooooopoDoo0oOooooooooooao
oooDmoooomooooooooog
gooooooOooobooooo

oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oooocooo

oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
ooooooooooo

gooooo
oobooOoooooOoDOOooOoooooDooo
oooooooooooo

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

47.

Except where indicated in brackets, the above companies are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company or the holding company of that
division. The percentage in the brackets indicated the attributable
interest of the Company or the holding company of that division.
All subsidiaries operate principally in their respective places of
incorporation/registration unless specified otherwise under the heading
"Principal activities”.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or
constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES
Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

oooo
ooooo
gooooa
ooooooo Effective
Place of equity interest

gopoooo
Name of associate

incorporation/
registration

attributable
to the Group

0000
Principal activities

2011 2010
goboooooooo oogd 40.32% 39.57% goooooooooooobooo
GP Batteries International Limited Republic of Development, manufacturing
Singapore and marketing of batteries
and related products
ooo
Electronics division
ooobooooo oo 30.60% 37.54% oooooooooooo
Linkz Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and
manufacturing of electronic
cables and wires
oooooooooo¢* oo 16.24% 15.9% oooooooooooo
Meiloon Industrial Company Limited* Taiwan oooo

Development, manufacturing
and marketing of acoustics
and audio-visual equipment

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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47.0 0000 ooo 47. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (cONTINUED)
oooo
ooooon
gooooo
ooooooo Effective
Place of equity interest
000000 incorporation/ attributable 0000
Name of associate registration to the Group Principal activities
2011 2010
SPAOOMMOOOA oo - 36.89% oooooooooooo
SPG Industry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong oooooo
Investment holding and
trading of high precision
metal and plastic parts
goooooooo oo 24.33% 23.84% oooooobooooo
Wisefull Technology Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and
trading of metallic products
o00o0oOoooooooo¢* oo 16.22% 15.90% goooog
Suzhou Bordnetze Electrical PRC Manufacturing of
Systems Limited* automotive wire harness
000000O0OoO0o0oOoO0OoOooOooOoO A Disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2011.
# 0O0O0OO0OOOODOOOCOODOOOOOO #  Significant influence is exercised through representative on board of directors of

the associates.

000000000 0D0DOoDOoDDoOoooooOoO All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company. All
0000000000000 0ooooog associates operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/
O000000OO0OO0OO0OOOOOOOOOO registration. All of the above companies are limited liability companies.
0000000000000 0ooooog The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
0000000000000 0ooooog of the directors, the Group exercised significant influence and principally
000000000 0D0DOoDOoDDoOoooooOoO affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of
00000000000 00OO0O0OooOOoOooo the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

48. 000000 48. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
gooooo
ooooooo
ooo

Proportion of
ooooooooono oooo nominal value oooo
Name of a jointly controlled entity Place of registration of issue capital Principal activities

2011 2010

ooo

Electronic division

oooo oo 50% 50% oooooobooooo

SJAH PRC Manufacturing and
distributing of wire harness
products.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
GPUODOOOOOOOO

goooo

oooooooooono

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March

2011 2011 2010 2010
ooooo ooo* ooooo ooo*
$$'000 HK$°000* $$'000 HK$'000*
ooo Turnover 335,766 1,957,516 267,879 1,457,502
ooooo Profit before taxation 33,968 198,033 44,524 242,251
oo Taxation (10,044) (58,556) (10,355) (56,341)
ooooo Profit after taxation 23,924 139,477 34,169 185,910
ooooo Non-controlling interests (118) (688) (315) (1,714)
oooo Profit for the year 23,806 138,789 33,854 184,196
ooooooo CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
oooooog At 31 March
2011 2011 2010 2010
onooo ooo* ooooo ooo*
$$'000 HK$'000* $$'000 HK$’000*
ooono Investment properties 12,202 75,364 - -
oooooooo Property, plant and equipment 37,481 231,498 42,152 233,783
oooooo Interest in associates 283,124 1,748,687 304,852 1,690,770
ooooooo Investment in unquoted
equity shares 12,247 75,642 22,454 124,534
oooooo Non-current receivables 21,164 130,717 11,206 62,151
oooo Other investments 2,896 17,887 5,108 28,330
oooooo Deferred tax assets 192 1,186 - -
oooo Intangible assets 4,926 30,425 5,027 27,881
ooono Current assets 190,295 1,175,338 239,525 1,328,454
ooo Total assets 564,527 3,486,744 630,324 3,495,903
ooouoo Non-current liabilities 64,366 397,550 13,253 73,504
oooo Current liabilities 136,984 846,068 222,832 1,235,871
ooo Total liabilities 201,350 1,243,618 236,085 1,309,375
ooo Net assets 363,177 2,243,126 394,239 2,186,528
oooOooooooo Equity attributable to
owners of the company 362,194 2,237,055 392,613 2,177,510
ooooo Non-controlling interests 983 6,071 1,626 9,018
363,177 2,243,126 394,239 2,186,528
oo MARKET CAPITALISATION 278,204 1,718,299 260,515 1,444,868

* [J000000000O0OO0COO0O0OO0OO0OOOOO0O0OO0

*  The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted
at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.

gooooooooooo OooOooooooooao
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP BATTERIES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

pooooudugoooboboo

ooooo

oooooooooon

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 March

2011 2011 2010 2010
ooooo ooo* ooooo ooox*
$$°000 HK$'000* $$'000 HK$'000*
oooooo oooooo
(Restated) (Restated)
ooo Turnover 831,670 4,848,636 799,366 4,349,270
goooo Profit before taxation 31,126 181,464 55,079 299,679
oo Taxation (7,551) (44,022) (12,667) (68,920)
ooooo Profit after taxation 23,575 137,442 42,412 230,759
gopDooo Non-controlling interests (4,377) (25,518) (5,313) (28,907)
oooo Profit for the year 19,198 111,924 37,099 201,852
ooooooo CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
oooocoono At 31 March
2011 2011 2010 2010
ooooo ooo* ooooo ooo*
$$°000 HK$'000* 5$'000 HK$'000*
oooooo oooooo
(Restated) (Restated)
oo Goodwill on consolidation 18,055 111,515 19,835 110,009
oooo Investment properties 1,133 6,998 1,263 7,005
oooooooo Property, plant and equipment 243,904 1,506,449 249,162 1,381,902
oooooog Interest in associates 69,926 431,891 85,067 471,799
oooooo Available-for-sale investment 4,673 28,862 3,346 18,557
oooooo Deferred tax assets 3,537 21,846 3,110 17,249
oooo Intangible assets 2,042 12,612 5,581 30,953
goooooo Non-current deposits - - 1,245 6,905
oooo Current assets 351,188 2,169,078 385,106 2,135,875
ooo Total assets 694,458 4,289,251 753,715 4,180,254
ooooo Non-current liabilities 32,487 200,653 57,423 318,479
oooo Current liabilities 330,551 2,041,615 338,737 1,878,703
ooo Total liabilities 363,038 2,242,268 396,160 2,197,182
ooo Net assets 331,420 2,046,983 357,555 1,983,072
gooooooooo Equity attributable to
owners of the company 286,933 1,772,213 308,686 1,712,034
goooo Non-controlling interests 44,487 274,770 48,869 271,038
331,420 2,046,983 357,555 1,983,072
oo MARKET CAPITALISATION 152,721 943,266 195,248 1,082,884
* [QO00O0O0O0DOOO0OO0OOOO0ODOOOOOOOOODOOO *  The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted

at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.
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Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited
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Gold Peak Building, &F 30 Kwal Wing Road
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Tel: (B52) 2427 1133 Fax: (852) 2489 1878
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Website: www.goldpeak.com
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